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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EASTERN
AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
93 to 227, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2006, and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for
and only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 April 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(FZ BB BT B e 2 2 Al i )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_TEXNFT _H=+—HIFE

2006 2005
Z2ERF “TTnE
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B AR¥ETR ARETTT
Revenues LION 5 37,488,875 27,454,443
Other operating income, net Hing e 28 6 424,265 245,279
Operating expenses BEXU
Commissions BeIH (1,316,620) (969,587)
Aircraft fuel e SR KL (13,608,793) (8,888,873)
Take-off and landing charges T AerE & (4,989,382) (3,718,846)
Ground services and other charges HEREERECER (162,104) (115,516)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies Eﬁnﬁﬁ*é RIERRES (696,428) (466,191)
Food and beverages MEEZRHE (1,188,016) (976,787)
Wages, salaries and benefits 5 e MER 8 (3,476,096) (2,359,467)
Aircraft maintenance M‘%%ﬁp (2,647,340) (1,383,989)
Aircraft depreciation and operating lease rentals REMERLLHHEERS (6,973,863) (5,254,716)
Other depreciation, amortisation and HiBEEEERE -
operating lease rentals BHhgEnHERS (782,044) (666,287)
Ticket reservation fees FHTE (418,367) (292,412)
Insurance costs ReE (161,469) (148,862)
Deficits on revaluation of property, plant and mE - BERBETRE
equipment BEBX 15 (1,035,343) -
Office, administrative and other expenses WL EEREMER (3,448,715) (2,443,941)
Total operating expenses EES gk L (40,904,580) (27,685,474)
Operating (loss)/profit e (BB /&7 9 (2,991,440) 14,248
Interest income il ,%'\ WA 120,161 128,700
Finance costs MEXH 10 (877,579) (707,050)
Share of results of associates BEBELRRER 19 103,566 (9,030)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BELAAEHERRE 20 29,595 (4,300)
Loss before income tax BEiAIEE (3,615,697) (577,432)
Income tax B 11 162,932 138,704
Loss for the year FEERE (3,452,765) (438,728)
Attributable to: BER
Equity holders of the Company AREERFAA (3,313,425) (467,307)
Minority interests LERRER (139,340) 28,579
(3,452,765) (438,728)
Loss per share for loss attributable to the equity FRADAEREFE A
holders of the Company during the year EEEE
- basic and diluted - EXR#EE 13 RMB(0.68) RMB(0.10)
The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SLEEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(HZEIBR B 75 25 2B Al 22)
As at 31 December 2006
RZFEEXNF+-_A=+—H

2006 2005
“EERE —ZThF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
i ARETR ARETTT
Non-current assets kreEE
Intangible assets EVEE 14 1,337,554 751,843
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERSRE 15 40,050,466 38,524,868
Lease prepayments BNHEER 16 1,054,362 972,771
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft REFBRR 17 7,668,708 9,072,673
Investments in associates RENHENF 19 623,390 629,746
Investments in jointly controlled entities RERERZHEER 20 115,540 100,520
Available-for-sale financial assets MHENBEE 47,554 40,802
Other long-term assets HpRHEE 21 1,099,265 2,705,558
Deferred tax assets BEMIBEE 31 82,146 12,324
Derivative assets TTHEE 34 73,269 70,886
52,152,254 52,881,991
Current assets REBEE
Flight equipment spare parts RERESH 1,198,642 978,922
Trade receivables and notes receivable EURER K ENEE 22 2,002,855 1,918,409
Amounts due from related companies JEW B BR A RFUR 41 352,719 205,712
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNZ - BRRETERZ 23 2,475,992 997,271
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 24 1,987,486 1,864,001
Derivative assets MTEEBE 34 113,532 53,036
Non-current assets held for sale BEERDEE 37 882,426 -
9,013,652 6,017,351
Current liabilities REAE
Sales in advance of carriage EEEN 891,659 823,149
Trade payables and notes payable NS VI ES 25 5,090,210 3,113,898
Amounts due to related companies ) NGIE S5 41 348,477 576,030
Other payables and accrued expenses HwENRRBRER 26 7,986,351 5,995,751
Current portion of obligations BEMERED
under finance leases REN I 27 2,803,956 2,428,037
Current portion of borrowings EE G 28 16,016,327 18,554,630
Income tax payable JER I8 80,483 47,259
Current portion of provision for aircraft REXEERERD
overhaul expenses REHL D 29 20,900 15,589
Derivative liahilities fTHEEE 34 124,722 34,844
Liabilities directly associated with BEEERYEERR
non-current assets held for sale HEnasE 37 442,935 -
33,806,020 31,589,187
Net current liabilities RRBDEE (24,792,368) (25,571,836)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDAR 27,359,886 27,310,155
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(HZBUBR B 75 e a5 2 Rl A 22

As at 31 December 2006

R-ZFEXNFF—A=+—H

2006 2005
—EEAE —TTRE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARETR ARETT
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Obligations under finance leases MEMEAR 27 9,048,642 8,159,517
Borrowings B 28 12,091,413 9,790,116
Provision for aircraft overhaul expenses R X1 ERERE 29 489,721 388,410
Other long-term liabilities HEpRHARE 30 438,461 201,902
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBBAE 31 68,459 178,825
Post-retirement benefit obligations RINERHNER 32(b) 1,292,960 1,202,877
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances ~ B TEE®EARHIH  33(b) 439,491 444,196
Derivative liabilities fTHEEE 34 14,096 25,770
23,883,243 20,391,613
Net assets HEE 3,476,643 6,918,542
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to RRAERFBA
the equity holders of the Company EIRER R
Share capital B 35 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 2] 36 (2,052,053) 1,229,115
2,814,897 6,096,065
Minority interests SRR ER 661,746 822,477
Total equity BER 3,476,643 6,918,542

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2007.

AP BHRRELE_ZTLFOATNEHETSRBLFAIEDL -

Li Fenghua Cao Jianxiong
Director Director
3 F ey
EFE EF

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

BEERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(HZEIBR B 75 25 2B Al 22)
As at 31 December 2006
RZFEEXNF+-_A=+—H

2006 2005
ZEERE —ETREF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
i ARETR ARETTT
Non-current assets kreEE
Intangible assets BEWEE 14 1,032,679 751,591
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERSRE 15 31,606,868 32,162,125
Lease prepayments BNHEER 16 497,668 481,600
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft REBRR 17 7,006,853 8,157,515
Investments in subsidiaries RERKB AT 18 3,882,670 2,512,490
Investments in associates RENE &R A 19 377,872 620,659
Investments in jointly controlled entities BRERERZHEER 20 59,552 59,552
Available-for-sale financial assets MHENKEE 31,806 35,282
Other long-term assets HEpWRHEE 21 994,729 2,596,521
Derivative assets THEE 34 73,269 70,886
45,563,966 47,448,221
Current assets REBEE
Flight equipment spare parts RERESH 931,415 906,605
Trade receivables and notes receivable JFE Ui B % &Jﬂlﬁlmﬁf 22 1,260,572 1,260,283
Amounts due from related companies Jﬂlﬁlﬁfﬂﬂﬁfﬁ 41 351,209 203,113
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENR - & &E WWM 23 2,173,904 688,543
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeZEEY 24 1,109,834 940,609
Derivative assets MTEEBE 34 113,532 53,036
Non-current assets held for sale BEERDEE 37 882,426 -
6,822,892 4,052,189
Current liabilities hEBAE
Sales in advance of carriage EEEN 891,659 808,231
Trade payables and notes payable NS VI ES 25 4,674,301 2,975,827
Amounts due to related companies ) NGIE S5 41 246,362 205,189
Other payables and accrued expenses HwENRRBRER 26 6,683,039 5,132,878
Current portion of obligations BEMERED
under finance leases REN I 27 2,636,057 2,361,974
Current portion of borrowings EE G 28 13,004,878 15,375,864
Current portion of provision for REREERERR
aircraft overhaul expenses mEE S 29 20,900 15,589
Income tax payable FERTE - 2,210
Derivative liahilities fTHEEE 34 124,722 34,844
Liabilities directly associated with non-current ~ EEFEFRHEE
assets held for sale BERABENERE 37 442,935
28,724,853 26,912,606
Net current liabilities REFEEE (21,901,961) (22,860,417)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDAR 23,662,005 24,587,804
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Balance Sheet

EERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(HZBUBR B 75 e a5 2 Rl A 22

As at 31 December 2006

R-ZFEXNFF—A=+—H

2006 2005
—EEAE —TTRE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARETR ARETT
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Obligations under finance leases MEMEAR 27 7,511,373 7,363,308
Borrowings B 28 10,841,915 9,457,436
Provision for aircraft overhaul expenses R X1 ERERE 29 408,690 333,246
Other long-term liabilities HEpRHARE 30 438,461 201,902
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHEESE 31 - 160,067
Post-retirement benefit obligations RINERHNER 32(b) 1,144,653 1,085,637
Long-term portion of staff housing allowances ~ B TEE®EARHIH  33(b) 413,386 415,735
Derivative liabilities fTHEEE 34 14,096 25,770
20,772,574 19,043,101
Net assets HEE 2,889,431 5,544,703
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to RRAERFBA
the equity holders of the Company EIRER R
Share capital B 35 4,866,950 4,866,950
Reserves 2] 36 (1,977,519) 677,753
Total equity AR 2,889,431 5,544,703

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2007.

AP BHRREKLE_STLFMNA+NERESSRBAFTAI L -

Li Fenghua Cao Jianxiong
Director Director
=3 o R
FE BE

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(FZ BB BT B e 2 2 Al i )
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TTANGF+-_A=+—HILFE

2006 2005
ZEEARE _ZTRE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
HE AR®TR ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRSRE
Cash generated from operations SEEANES 38 3,458,510 3,369,783
Interest paid BERFE (2,097,077) (1,357,402)
Income tax paid BRAEHR (22,740) (59,932)
Net cash inflow from operating activities EEIHELNIRG 1,338,693 1,952,449
Cash flows from investing activities REEBNEERE
Additions of property, plant and equipment BAME HERZE (879,756) (2,676,050
Proceeds from disposal of property, MEME  HER
plant and equipment REMER 328,419 32,923
Acquisition of land use rights YN A i (37,158) (31,780)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BAFREEEN
financial assets MKEE (6,751) (1,256)
Advanced payments on acquisition R HYURRT
of aircraft RENENK (4,560,694) (7,751,197)
Refund of advanced payments upon delivery W 44T A 3R 3,744,513 -
of aircraft
Repayment of other payables BREMENK
(instalment payment for acquisition (BA-MTE£H
of an airline business) M7 B H) (30,000) (30,000)
Decrease/(increase) ROTFREF
in bank deposits D () - 210
Interest received BlFE 120,161 128,700
Dividend received Bl 8,617 -
Acquisitions of controlling interests BEBERANEH
in associates, net cash outflow BRFREMA 40 (366,529) (40,704)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZHELEMNTES (1,679,178) (10,369,094)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2006 2005
ZEEARE _ZTRE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
HE ARETR ARETTL
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRELRE
Proceeds from draw down of short-term RHETERAER
bank loans 14,748,954 14,307,315
Repayments of short-term bank loans EBREHFTER (15,133,553) (8,872,754)
Proceeds from draw down of long-term REFTERAER
bank loans 6,909,927 5,135,286
Repayments of long-term bank loans ERERARTER (4,179,412) (3,843,483)
Principal repayments of finance Tgiﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ &
lease obligations fmAS (2,539,995) (1,157,334)
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable YTENZBENER 7,696,014 4,228,783
Repayments of notes payable BEEARE (6,014,279) (3,376,072)
Proceeds from issuance of debentures ENEAERER - 1,951,600
Repayment of debentures ERES (2,000,000 -
Placement of finance lease deposits XNBERERKAS (803) -
Refund of deposits for finance leases upon maturities ~ WEIZ| W EHER KR & 1,047,534 -
Capital injection from a minority shareholder HHBAR L BRRKEI R E
on subsidiaries 1 -
2004 dividend paid AARREREREEA
3 {2004 IR 7 (60,000) (97,339)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders RE AR ERE
of subsidiaries ZRA (53,550) (90,000)
Net cash inflow from financing activities RETHELEERES 420,838 8,186,002
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRREEE
cash equivalents nEEm/ (B 80,353 (230,643)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A-ANRERELEED 1,864,001 2,114,447
Exchange adjustments ExRE 43,132 (19,803)
Cash and cash equivalents TZAZ+T-H0ERER
at 31 December REZEY 1,987,486 1,864,001
The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ARE101 B E227 A BRI MR BRI,
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Consolidated Statement of Changes 1n Equity
EERBEX

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(% BB BT 75 # & Al e )

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TTANGF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
ALARRER
Share Minority Total
(apital Reserves Sub-total interests equity
kx it ait YERRER Y $5

RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'OOD  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR

Balance at 1 January 2005

Cash flow hedges, net of tax

Dividend relating to 2004

Dividend paid to minority interest in
subsidiaries

Contribution from minority interest in
subsidiaries

Loss for the year

“ERRE-A-BEK
REREEH NKHA
“ERRENRA
S ERERR

WELR D BRRELEN

FEBE

Xt

.

oo

4866950 L6STT4 6524126 820835 7,344,959
- 16587 136587 136,587
-39 (97.33) - (913%)

- - - (90,000)  (90,000)

- - - 63,063 63,063
- (47307)  (e67307) 8519 (438.728)

Balance at 31 December 2005

“EERETACT-HER

4,866,950 1,229,115 6,096,065 822,477 6,918,542

Balance at 1 January 2006

Cash flow hedges, net of tax

Revaluation reserve, net of tax, arising
from the acquisition of a controlling
interest in an associate

Dividend paid to minority interests in
subsidiaries

Loss for the year

Additions through acquisitions
of subsidiaries (Note 40)

ZRERF-R-BER
REREEH HKRE

HRE-SRBREQTLHER

CECET Pl E:
EfEff NRHA
XAHERAIERRRA

EEFR
REUBHELTRM
(£RB40)

4,866,950 1,229,115 6,096,065 822,411 6,918,542
- 8,441 8,441 - 8,441
- 23,816 23,816 - 23,816

- - - (42892 (428%)
- (3313,425) (3313,425)  (139,340) (3,452,765)

- - - 21,501 21,501

Balance at 31 December 2006

ZRRAETZACT-RER

4,866,950  (2,052,053) 2,814,897 661,746 3,476,643

The notes on pages 101 to 227 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR TRE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R EIBRBY T # e ZE Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the
“Company”), a joint stock company limited by shares
was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") on 14 April 1995. The address of its
registered office is 66 Airport Street, Pudong
International Airport, Shanghai, the PRC. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, and mail
delivery and other extended transportation services.

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air
Holding Company (“CEA Holding”), a state-owned
enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company’s shares are traded on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, The New York Stock Exchange
and The Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company
acquired additional equity interests of 56% in China
Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co., Ltd. (“CEA Wuhan”).
Further details of the acquisition are set out in Note
40 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of property, plant
and equipment, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

NREHR
FEERITMERNARAR (AR
Al RR—NANAFHA+HBERE
REE ARKAE (THE]) RIZH—
AP BERAR - ARBEMHbIE
A B LR R B EIS 5 66
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ARRHBRNEREHAERZME
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FR P LW e

RZEERE+A=1+HItHE
[§  ARalE— S WERBE R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in Note
4 to the financial statements. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates.

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB3,313 million for the current financial year
and as at 31 December 2006 the Group’s
accumulated losses were approximately
RMB3,335 million and its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB24,792 million. Based on the Group’s history
of obtaining finance, its relationships with its
bankers, banking facilities available and net
operating cash inflow, the Board of Directors
consider that the Group will be able to obtain
sufficient financing to enable it to operate and
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate that these
financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis and they do not include
any adjustments that would be required should
the Company and the Group fail to continue as
a going concern.

2. EESTHREBE &

(a) AmREZE (B)

IRELTT B M ERIM B I R R
FREMETHERSHER -
ENFREEEERBART
SETBERBIEPITEE I -
W EERNHE = EEREE
RS - 308 KR A R SR
RBEANRRMEE RS -
EMBHRRARBLPHE - 1t
EFRBEMEE S EEN R
KAFPIRHEEMAE - 3L
BEENABNWE  ARE
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AREREEEBHERNSIER
TR SEMBIEELE - EE
PREERA A e BT HIRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

In 2006, the Group adopted the following
amendments and interpretations to existing
standards which are relevant to its operations.
The adoption of these amendments and
interpretations did not have any significant
impact on its results of operations and financial
position. In summary:

° International Accounting Standard
(“IAS”) No. 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment)
- Financial Guarantee Contracts

° IAS 19 (Amendment) - Employee
Benefits: Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures

° IAS 39 (Amendment) - The Fair Value
option

o International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC")
Interpretation 4 - Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease

The following new/revised standards and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published which are relevant to the Group’s
operations that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006 or
later periods. The Group is assessing the impact
of these new/revised standards and
interpretations but management do not believe
these new/revised standards and interpretations
will have a significant impact on its results of
operations or financial position.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a) Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

° IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2006)

° IFRS 8 - Operating segments (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009)

° IAS 1 (Amendment) - Presentation of
Financial Statements: Capital disclosures
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2007)

° IFRIC Interpretation 8 - Scope of IFRS 2
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 May 2006)

° IFRIC Interpretation 9 - Reassessment
of Embedded Derivatives (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2006)

o IFRIC Interpretation 10 - Interim
Financial Reporting and Impairment
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 November 2006)

° IFRIC Interpretation 11 - IFRS 2 - Group
and Treasury Share Transactions
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 March 2007)

° IFRIC Interpretation 12 - Service
Concession Arrangements (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(1)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which the
Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(i)  Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The purchase method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, including
those acquired from holding companies.
The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(B

BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Consolidation (Cont’d)

()

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Minority interests represents the
interests of outside members in the
operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries. The Group applies a policy
of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to
minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group that are recorded in
the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses,
if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investments in associates includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on
acquisition.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Consolidation (Cont’d)
(ii)  Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other wunsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Associates (Cont’d)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in associates are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses,
if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity
in which the Group has joint control over
its economic activity established under
a contractual arrangement. The Group’s
investments in jointly controlled entities
includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting based on the
audited financial statements or
management accounts of the jointly
controlled entities. The Group’s share of
its jointly controlled entities” post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements is
adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that
entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entity.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (Cont’d)
(iii) Jointly controlled entities (Cont’d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of jointly controlled entities have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Segmental reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that is subject
to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary
reporting format and geographical as the
secondary reporting format.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHERBE (@)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c) Segmental reporting (Cont’d)

The Group has two business segments, namely
passenger (including cargo carried by passenger
flights) and cargo and logistics, which are
structured and managed separately, according
to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide.

In respect of the geographical segment, the
analysis of turnover and operating profit is
based on the following criteria:

(1)

Traffic revenue from services within the
PRC (excluding the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong")) is
classified as domestic operations. Traffic
revenue from inbound and outbound
services between the PRC and Hong Kong
or overseas markets is classified under
Hong Kong or the relevant overseas
locations.

Revenue from ticket handling services,
airport ground services and other
miscellaneous services are classified on
the basis of where the services are
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(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities are
reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised directly in
equity, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised directly in
equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
the income statement, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance
of carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of business and value-
added taxes, returns, rebates and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

(i)  Traffic revenues

Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are
recognised as traffic revenues when the
transportation services are provided. The
value of sold but unused tickets is
recognised as sales in advance of carriage
(“SIAC™).

(ii)  Commission income

Commission income represents amounts
earned from other carriers in respect of
sales made by the Group’s agents on their
behalf, and is recognised in the income
statement upon ticket sales.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance
of carriage (Cont'd)

(iii) Other operating income

Revenues from other operating
businesses, including income derived
from the provision of ground services
and cargo handling services, are
recognised when the services are
rendered.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income from subleases of aircraft
is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the respective leases.
Rental income from leasing office
premises and cargo warehouses is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deducted from the related cost in the income
statement.

Government grants relating to property, plant
and equipment are recognised as a reduction
of the carrying amount of the asset. The grant
is recognised as income over the life of a
depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes regarding pension and
medical benefits for employees organised by
the municipal governments of the relevant
provinces. The contributions to the schemes
are charged to the income statement as and
when incurred.

In addition, the Group provides retirees with
post-retirement benefits including retirement
subsidies, transportation subsidies, social
function activity subsidies as well as other
welfare. The liability recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the
fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually using
the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms
of the related pension liability. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess
of the greater of 10% of the value of plan
assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation
are charged or credited to income over the
employees’” expected average remaining working
lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

(1)

Retirement benefits (Cont’d)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in income, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the
past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft under operating leases,
the Group has the responsibility to fulfill certain
return conditions under relevant leases. In order
to fulfill these return conditions, major
overhauls are required to be conducted on a
regular basis. Accordingly, the present value of
estimated costs of major overhauls for aircraft
under operating leases are provided at each
balance sheet date. The provision in each period
is estimated using historical major overhaul
costs incurred during each overhaul and the
estimated period between overhauls using the
ratios of actual flying hours and estimated
flying hours between overhauls. Differences
between the estimated cost and the actual cost
of the overhaul are included in the income
statement in the period of overhaul.

In respect of aircraft owned by the Group or
held under finance leases, costs of overhauls
are capitalised as a component of property,
plant and equipment and are depreciated over
the appropriate maintenance cycles. When each
overhaul is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment and is depreciated over
the estimated period between overhauls, on a
straight-line basis. Upon completion of an
overhaul, any remaining carrying amount of the
cost of the previous overhaul is derecognised
and charged to the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(1)

@)

Maintenance and overhaul costs (Cont’d)

All other routine repairs and maintenance costs
incurred in restoring such assets to their normal
working condition are charged to the income
statement as and when incurred.

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated
over their expected useful lives to the Group.

Income tax

The Group provides for current income tax based
on the results for the year as adjusted for items
which are not assessable or deductible for
current income tax purposes. Current income
tax of the Group is determined in accordance
with the relevant tax rules and regulations
applicable in the jurisdictions where the Group
operates.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(B

BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

@)

(k)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised
initially at cost which comprises purchase price,
advance payments on acquisition and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to the condition for their intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property,
plant and equipment is stated at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Independent valuations are performed at least
once every five years, or sooner if considered
necessary by the Directors. In the intervening
years, the Directors review the carrying values
of property, plant and equipment and
adjustment is made where they are materially
different from fair value. Increases in the
carrying amount arising on revaluation are
credited to the revaluation reserve. Decreases
in valuation of property, plant and equipment
are first offset against increases from earlier
valuations of the same asset and are thereafter
charged to the income statement. All other
decreases in valuation are charged to the
income statement. Any subsequent increases are
credited to the income statement up to the
amount previously charged. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset, and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Costs of overhaul for aircraft owned by the
Group or held under finance leases are
capitalised as a component of property, plant
and equipment and are depreciated over the
appropriate maintenance cycles (Note 2(i)).

All other repairs and maintenance is charged
in the income statement during the financial
period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
write down their costs or revalued amounts to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Aircraft, engines and flight equipment

- Components related to 2 to 8 years
overhaul costs
- Others 20 years
Buildings 15 to 35 years
Other property, plant and 5 to 20 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the assets’
carrying amount and are recognised within
office, administrative and other expenses, in
the income statements. When revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained

profits.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment,
being mainly flight simulators,
installation. This includes the costs of
construction or acquisition and interest
capitalised. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until the asset is

completed and ready for use.

(1) Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of an acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary, associate, jointly controlled
entity or business at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries and businesses is included
in ‘intangible assets’. Goodwill on
acquisition of associates and jointly
controlled entities is included
‘investments in associates’

‘investments in jointly controlled
entities’. Recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to

the entity sold.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(1) Intangible assets (Cont’d)

()

(i)

(iii)

Goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose.

Sponsorship fees

Sponsorship fees paid in relation to the
2010 Shanghai Expo have been
capitalised and are being amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of
the sponsorship program. The cost of the
intangible asset is calculated based on
the expected cash payment and the fair
value of the services to be provided.

Computer software costs

Expenditure on computer software costs
is capitalisd and amortised using the
straight-line method over the expected
useful lives of the software, which vary
from 5 to 6 years.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, jointly controlled entities and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
which are not yet available for use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs
of land use rights less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is provided over the
lease period of the land use rights on a straight-
line basis.

Advanced payments on acquisition of
aircraft

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft
represent payments to aircraft manufacturers
to secure deliveries of aircraft in future years
and the related interest capitalised. The balance
is transferred to property, plant and equipment
upon delivery of the aircraft.
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IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

Borrowing costs

Interest attributable to loans for advance
payments used to finance the acquisition of
aircraft and other qualifying assets is capitalised
as an additional cost of the related asset.
Interest is capitalised at the Group’s weighted
average interest rate on borrowings or, where
applicable, the interest rate related to specific
borrowings during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.

Long-term bank deposits

Held-to-maturity long-term bank deposits placed
to secure future lease obligations are classified
as held-to-maturity financial assets and
included under other long-term assets in the
balance sheet. Held-to-maturity financial assets
are initially recognised in the balance sheet at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses.

Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of flight equipment spare parts
comprises the purchase price (net of discounts),
freight charges, duty and value added tax and
other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated replacement cost of the
flight equipment spare parts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
differences between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(w) Leases
(i) A Group company is the lessee
Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant
and equipment. Leases of property, plant
and equipment where the Group has
acquired substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as
to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term
and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for
each period. Leased assets are
depreciated using a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives to
residual values.

For sale and leaseback transactions
resulting in a finance lease, differences
between sales proceeds and net book
values are deferred and amortised over
the minimum lease terms.
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BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(w) Leases (Cont'd)

()

(i)

A Group company is the lessee
(Cont'd)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

For sale and leaseback transactions
resulting in an operating lease,
differences between sales proceeds and
net book values are recognised
immediately in the income statement,
except to the extent that any profit or
loss is compensated for by future lease
payments at above or below market
value.

A Group company is the lessor

When assets are leased out under a
finance lease, the present value of the
lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the
gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as
unearned finance income. Lease income
is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of
return.

Assets leased out under operating leases
are included in property, plant and
equipment in the balance sheet. They
are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and equipment.
Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value. The accounting for subsequent changes
in fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The
Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items.

Derivative financial instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for
as trading instruments and any unrealised gains
or losses, being changes in fair value of the
derivatives, are recognised in the income
statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
and that are highly effective, are recorded in
the income statement, along with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities that are attributable to the hedged
risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

Derivative financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments that qualify for
hedge accounting and which are designated as
a specific hedge of the variability in cashflows
of a highly probable forecast transaction, are
accounted for as follows:

(i) the effective portion of any change in
fair value of the derivative financial
instrument is recognised directly in
equity. Where the forecast transaction
or firm commitment results in the
recognition of an asset or a liability,
the gains and losses previously deferred
in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability. Otherwise, the cumulative gain
or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement in
the same period during which the hedged
forecast transaction affects net profit or
loss.

(ii)  the ineffective portion of any change in
fair value is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised in the income
statement when the committed or forecast
transaction ultimately occurs. When a
committed or forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was recorded in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTBEREE (@

POLICIES (Cont'd)

(v) Dividend (y) &

Dividend distribution to the Company’s ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ&%ZH&frUE&Zﬁ
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the RNEI R ERHEERZ I E B ERR
financial statements in the period in which the RASBEZBE -

dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders.

(z) Available-for-sale financial assets (z) AIHHEHERKEE
Investments in securities other than SENBHEIEBEERE © B
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled BT - BEnm RLRE
entities, being held for non-trading purposes, HIEEE - SEATHRNEME
are classified as available-for-sale financial BE - AIMHHENBEE - 7
assets and are initially recognised at fair value HRARBEINRZHAIHER ©
plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet AEEESEAE BT
date, the fair value is remeasured, with any BEMARE BRBEEX
resulting gain or loss being recognised directly SN TEREBEEZEERET
in equity, except for impairment losses. When 59% EEBARECRILE
these investments are derecognised, the o HM@EEE@%{%Z%M&
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised me ik - g AER
directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date rEETEEREARE BTHES
whether there is objective evidence that a EREBREEREBMBEE
financial asset is impaired. In the case of equity SRAVBEELDRBE - B
securities classified as available for sale, a RoBERAHEENRESR
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value %’% TEEEHFELRCLRE
of the securities below its cost is considered BERBHFRABBEER
an indicator that the securities are impaired. %TEHJ%E%:HEE REKAE o
If any such evidence exists for available-for- ARHEENBEEFENE
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss, B - REtEE —RIEA AR
measured as the difference between the HERNAAENER  BZY
acquisition cost and the current fair value less BEE AT ERKERNE
any impairment loss on that financial asset AREEESE — BT
previously recognised in the income statement, BrIFIEIB T R ACAR - TEIBE K
is removed from equity and recognised in the mRORETLRESET TS
income statement. Impairment losses recognised FHiBE AR -

in the income statement on equity instruments

are not reversed through the income statement.

(aa) Comparatives (aa) L& & ¥
Where necessary, prior year amounts have been WMEBFRE  UNAIFESEER

reclassified to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year.

EREYR AN M EF
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(B

BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
HE-SEAFEF A=+ ALFEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of

financial risks:

business risk, market risk

(including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures.

(1)

(i)

Business risk

The operations of the air transportation
industry are substantially influenced by
global political and economic
development. Accidents, wars, natural
disasters, etc. may have a material
impact on the Group’s operations or the
industry as a whole. In addition, the
Group conducts its principal operations
in the PRC and accordingly is subject to
special considerations and significant
risks not typically associated with
companies in ‘Western’ countries. These
include risks associated with, among
others, the political, economic and legal
environment, competition and the
influence of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China (“CAAC”) in the
PRC civil aviation industry.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s finance lease obligations as
well as certain bank and other loans are
denominated in US dollars, Japanese Yen
and Euros, and certain expenses of the
Group are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. The Group generates
foreign currency revenues from ticket
sales made in overseas offices and would
normally generate sufficient foreign
currencies after payment of foreign
currency expenses, to meet its foreign
currency liabilities repayable within one
year. The Group also enters into certain
foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge against foreign currency risk.
Details of foreign currency forward
contracts are disclosed in Note 34(b) to
the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(iii) Interest rate risk

(v)

(v)

The Group has significant bank
borrowings at floating variable rates and
is exposed to risk arising from changes
in market interest rates. To hedge
against the variability in the cash flows
arising from a change in market interest
rates, the Group has entered into certain
interest rate swaps to swap variable rates
into fixed rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of borrowings made
to the Group and interest rate swaps are
disclosed in Notes 28 and 34(a) to the
financial statements.

Price risk

The Group’s results of operations may be
significantly affected by fluctuations in
fuel prices which is a significant expense
for the Group. While international fuel
prices are determined by worldwide
market demand and supply, domestic fuel
prices are reqgulated by CAAC. The Group
has entered into certain financial
derivatives to hedge against fuel price
risk. Details of fuel option contracts are
disclosed in Note 34(c) to the financial
statements.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that blank
tickets are made to sales agents with an
appropriate credit history. A major
portion of sales are conducted through
sales agents and the majority of these
agents are connected to various
settlement plans and/or clearing systems
which have tight requirements on the
credit standing of these agents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

Transactions in relation to derivative
financial instruments are only carried out
with financial institutions of high
reputation. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to
any one financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades
to aircraft, engines and flight equipment
and payments on related borrowings/
debts. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from
operations and both short and long term
bank loans. The Group generally finances
the acquisition of aircraft through long-
term finance leases and bank loans.

The Group operates with a working
capital deficit. As at 31 December 2006,
the Group’s net current liabilities
amounted to RMB24,792 million (2005:
RMB25,572 million). For the year ended
31 December 2006, the Group recorded
a net cash inflow from operating
activities of RMB1,338 million (2005:
RMB1,952 million), a net cash outflow
from investing activities and financing
activities of RMB1,258 million (2005:
RMB2,183 million), and an increase in
cash and cash equivalents of RMB80
million (2005: decrease of RMB231
million).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(vi) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The Directors of Company believe that
cash from operations and short-term bank
borrowings will be sufficient to meet the
Group’s operating cashflow. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s treasury policy
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding
by keeping credit lines available. The
Directors of the Company believe that
the Group has obtained sufficient general
credit facilities from PRC banks for
financing future capital commitments and
for working capital purposes.

Fair value estimation of financial assets
and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price; the quoted market price
used for financial liabilities is the current
asking price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are
used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments. The fair value of interest-
rate swaps is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates
at the balance sheet date. The fair value of
fuel option contracts is determined using quoted
market values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
(b) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

The carrying value less impairment provision
for trade receivables and payables are assumed
to approximate their fair values. The fair values
of other long-term receivables are based on
cash flows discounted using a rate based on
the borrowing rate. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the
financial statements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets have
been impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(m) to the
financial statements. The recoverable amounts
of cash generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates which
are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements.

3. TREREE (8

(b) 2~ sfEFHE (&)
P& YUK A FE A 35K ) AR T (B E R
FRBREERRNZOEAR
B - REIEEIRF R AE
TR HBRIRAE R E R A& R
RETRTE - ERWERR - 8
BREARENBHIRARS
WM MENANRERUESR
TEAAGHIRETISM KRR

| At
an

4. BRETHEERHE

A I IS SRR B TR A A (A E AN 1)
e R B TR ME MR RS
BETHE - BREEERIBELTHE
EHARKREMNSIRTEN - NEE
RRIELGEMRR - FISNE
AHEEMAEER  ROSEEER
RERIR - RAKESEE T EMK
FENEEMBENREEFLE
RFABEENREZ AT -

(a) TEFTYI% - Hies R REE
FEERE
BRI 3R TR 2 2(m) BTt &9
ETEER - AEEESFAR
M MBERREREREE
RAEHIRRE REeELEN
Ry AT Uk O] & RRIZ BB B BT
BEmMETE - WEHEFTEF A
HE (A1) -

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH

135




Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(b)

(<)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment is
subsequently stated at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(k) to
the financial statements. Revaluations of
property, plant and equipment will be performed
at sufficiently regular intervals, at least every
five years, by independent professional valuers.
In each of the intervening years valuations will
be undertaken by the Directors of the Company.
If the subsequent revalued amounts differ
materially from carrying amounts, the carrying
amounts will be adjusted to the revalued
amounts. Their recorded value is impacted by
management judgment, including valuations
performed by the management and/or
independent professional valuers, estimates of
useful lives, residual value and impairment
charges. If different judgments or estimates
had been utilized, material differences could
have resulted in the amount of revaluation and
related depreciation charges.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current
financial assets, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, prepayments,
other receivables, amounts due from related
companies and current financial liabilities
including trade payables and note payables,
other payables and accrued expenses and
amounts due to related companies, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises passenger, cargo and mail
revenues in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2(e) to the financial
statements. Unused tickets are recognised in
traffic revenues based on current estimates.
Management periodically evaluate the balance
in the SIAC and record any adjustments, which
can be material, in the period the evaluation
is completed. These adjustments result from
differences between the estimates of certain
revenue transactions and the timing of
recognising revenue for any unused air tickets
and the related sales price, and are impacted
by various factors, including a complex pricing
structure and interline agreements throughout
the industry, which affect the timing of revenue
recognition.

Overhaul costs

The amount of overhaul costs charged/amortised
to operating profits is impacted by
management’s estimates of the expected flying
hours and overhaul costs, which are largely
based on past experience of overhauls of the
same or similar models of aircraft. Different
judgments or estimates could significantly
affect the estimated overhaul provision and
materially impact the results of operations.

4. BRERETEERAE (&)

(d)

WA YRR

REFT 2 (e) FTELH) & 51K
R AEBEREER RS
RANTE HERPEK
A REERNEENEEE
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RIEER
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(f)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates and maintains defined
retirement benefit plans which provide retirees
with benefits including transportation subsidies,
social activity subsidies as well as other welfare.
The cost of providing the aforementioned
benefits in the defined retirement benefit plan
is actuarially determined and recognised over
the employees” service period by utilising
various actuarial assumptions and using the
projected unit credit method in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(h) to
the financial statements. These assumptions
include, without limitation, the selection of
discount rate, annual rate of increase of per
capita benefit payment and employees’ turnover
rate. The discount rate is based on
management’s review of local high quality
corporate bonds. The annual rate of increase
of benefit payments is based on the general
local economic conditions. The employees’
turnover rate is based on historical trends of
the Group. Additional information regarding the
retirement benefit plans is disclosed in Note
32 to the financial statements.

4. BRERETEERAE (&)

(f)

RIKEF
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

(9)

(h)

(1)

Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets
that need to be recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(j) to
the financial statements, the Group considers
future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tax planning strategies. In the event
that the Group’s estimates of projected future
taxable income and benefits from available tax
strategies are changed, or changes in current
tax requlations are enacted that would impact
the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to
utilise the tax benefits of net operating loss
carry forwards in the future, adjustments to
the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets
and taxation expense would be made.

Current tax

The Group make provision for current tax based
on the estimated income tax liabilities. The
estimated income tax liabilities are primarily
computed based on the tax filings as prepared
by our Company and based on management’s
interpretation of relevant tax rulings.

Classification of leases

The Group classifies leases into finance leases
or operating leases in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2(w) to the
financial statements. Whether a lease is a
finance lease or operating lease depends on
the substance of the transactions rather than
the form of the contract. In determining
whether a lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease, significant estimates and
judgment are required. In making these
estimates, and judgment, the Group evaluates
among other factors, if the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at
least substantially all of the fair value of the
leased asset at the inception of the lease. To
evaluate a lease based on this model, a number
of assumptions, such as the incremental
borrowing rate of interest, interest rate implicit
in the lease and residual values of the aircraft
at the end of the lease period have been made.
Any changes to these assumptions would affect
the classification of the lease.

4. BRERETEERAE (&)

(9)
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

5. REVENUES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
civil aviation, including the provision of passenger,

5. A

AEBTELERMER  BRER
B BB - BEREMTHNER

cargo, mail delivery and other extended transportation ART °
services.
Group
58
2006 2005
—FFAREFE —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ T T
Revenues WA
Traffic revenues E A
- Passenger —KiE 31,229,591 21,367,747
- Cargo and mail —EENEE 5,776,671 5,087,244
Ground service income b T AR 75 U A 781,130 806,755
Cargo handling income BEYRIEWA 289,530 292,488
Commission income HE U A 125,576 185,827
Rental income from operating Rt ME
subleases of aircraft A - 183,260
Others Hh 263,169 198,175
38,465,667 28,121,496
Less: Business tax (Note) W EEN () (976,792) (667,053)
37,488,875 27,454,443
Note: oy

Except for traffic revenues derived from inbound
international and regional flights, which are not subject to
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) business tax, the
Group's traffic revenues, commission income, ground service
income, cargo handling income and other revenues are
subject to PRC business tax levied at rates ranging from 3%
to 5%, pursuant to PRC business tax rules and regulations.

LR BB AT AR AR A S
$Ri0b - REBOBEBBUA - FRU
A - HERBBRA REYRIERAEIR
e B T A BUR B R D130 5
SO e B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET

6. Htt&xWam - FHE

Group
£E
2006 2005
—EERE _—_TThLF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%T
Government subsidies (Note) AL (G R) 462,370 193,069
Net fair value (losses)/gains MEEBITAERR
on financial instruments BF (X)) =
- forward foreign exchange —SNEFBBRE L
contracts 26,744 25,002
- fuel hedging (losses)/income  —fmMEH (Bk) Uz (64,849) 27,208
424,265 245,279

Note:

The government subsidies represent (i) subsidies granted
by local government to the Company in consideration of
the relocation of the Company’s international flights and
related facilities from Shanghai Honggiao Airport to Pudong
International Airport; (ii) subsidies granted by various local

i

B RE E B A (1) BT E AN A B E
PR AR K AR R R A AR B RR A 5 2
IR BIFR IS5 A5 T B0 RHRE M (i1) B it
TT B A s B AN SR AR O AR T
48 T RO A K (i) P RIBUT TS TV E

municipalities to encourage the Group to operate certain g RL o
routes to places where these municipalities are located;
and (iii) other subsidies granted by the Central Government.
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B2 —TENEFEfL A=+ —HIFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Primary reporting format by business
segment

Segment information is presented in respect of
the Group’s business and geographical segments.
Business segment information is chosen as the
primary reporting format. For the year ended
31 December 2005, the Group principally
operated in one business segment, which was
the operation of civil aviation, including the
provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery and
other extended transportation services. In view
of the growth of the China cargo and logistic
transportation services, the Group has decided
to report it as a separate business segment.

In the prior year’s financial statements, the
Group’s corporate general and administrative
expenses (the “Corporate Expenses”) were
allocated to respective segments. In order to
better reflect the impact of recent business
acquisitions and a rapid increase in business
volumes, Corporate Expenses have not been
allocated on a geographical basis because the
basis of such an allocation cannot be performed
on a non-arbitrary basis. Accordingly, the
analysis of segment results for both 2006 and
2005 has been presented on this basis.

7.

oEER
(@) REB T HHETESBER

RNEBERF R L= 5 5B
NFBRDEHER - WA FFES
SEEREESHHEN - HE
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B0 BIMZEETS - BIERE -
BiE - HEREMITEZER
¥ c BRNEE XY ER R
BEFRIER - AEERTER
TEERNFHEENYRIES
— BB EF DD R R o

NRTFENFBmERT - A&
EHARIERER([RAE
R REDERIE - NS
RIS M EAUE - &
T%ﬁﬁ&ﬁtiﬁi SN T E- SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7.

(a) Primary reporting format by business
segment (Cont’d)

(1)  Passenger business segment includes
cargo carried by passenger flights.

(2)  Inter-segment transfers or transactions
are entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions that would also be
available to unrelated third parties.

The segment results for the year ended 31
December 2006 are as follows:

DEER (8)
(@) REB T HHETESBER

(&)

(1) BHERDE
HEOEBEIR -

BREEME

(2) PEEBBE R SFEAR
ERAR 2 =7 R
ESLS A CSE Y-k

HE T FILFEEHDE
FEBEWMTHR -

Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE EERYUR AP CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARBFT ARBTT
Traffic revenues EgA 33,489,978 2,842,836 - 36,332,814
Other revenues and AR Ef
operating income 6 1,066,296 709,069 140,525 1,915,890
Total segment revenue 2 BMAAF 34,556,274 3,551,905 140,525 38,248,704
Inter-segment revenue 7 HELA (759,829) - - (759,829)
Revenues /ON 33,796,445 3,551,905 140,525 37,488,875
Operating (loss)/profit %4 (B58) /&7
- seqment results -DHEE (2,770,861) (242,526) 21,947 (2,991,440)
Interest income MEWA 112,181 6,247 1,733 120,161
Finance costs MEX i (776,647) (93,026) (7,906) (877,579)
Share of results of BRME LT
associates £5 103,566 - - 103,566
Share of results of jointly {5 £ R4
controlled entities L EL 29,595 - - 29,595
(Loss)/profit before B (88) /
income tax 4 A (3,302,166) (329,305) 15,774 (3,615,697
Income tax HE 198,088 (30,262) (4,894) 162,932
(Loss)/profit for the year £ E (B5%8) /&7 (3,104,078) (359,567) 10,880 (3,452,765)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006

B2 —TENEFEfL A=+ —HIFE

7.

(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. DEBER ()
Primary reporting format by business (@) AEEIBRAETESBERX
segment (Cont’d) (#&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 HE_ZTRF LFEMNDI
December 2005 are as follows: FEBEWTHR -
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE  EERYUR OB CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR
Traffic revenues LTI ON 23,182,516 2,731,636 - 25,914,152
Other revenues and L0 YN
operating income e 1,012,076 574,776 97,911 1,684,763
Total segment revenue DHMAA 24,194,592 3,306,412 97,911 27,598,915
Inter-segment revenue 2 SEUMA (144,472) - - (144,472)
Revenues LN 24,050,120 3,306,412 97,911 21,454,443
Operating (loss)/profit & (B#8) /&7
- segment results -DHEE (165,559) 167,414 12,393 14,248
Interest income MERA 120,155 6,149 2,396 128,700
Finance costs MExH (623,536) (83,518) 4 (707,050)
Share of results of g N
associates EL | (9,030) - - (9,030)
Share of results of jointly {52 F#E 5
controlled entities ER%AE (4,300) - - (4,300)
(Loss)/profit before Al (BR) /
income tax gl (682,210) 90,045 14,793 (577,432)
Income tax HE 153,226 (11,415) (3,107) 138,704
(Loss)/profit for the year &% (E#8) /&7 (529,044) 78,630 11,686 (438,728)
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. DEPER (&)
(a) Primary reporting format by business (@) AXBIHBRETESBER
segment (Cont’d) (#&)
Other segment items included in the income HE_ZTTF+-A=1—
statement for the year ended 31 December 2006 ALEFEBRERMERPRE
are as follows: fth > EBIE B FIRLAT -
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE  EERYUR OB CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARET AREFT ARETT
Depreciation ik 3,937,182 524,150 32,240 4,493,572
Amortisation 3 72,737 - - 72,737
Revaluation deficits of ~ #% - BER
property plant and BT
equipment ERER=FS 1,035,343 - - 1,035,343
Other segment items included in the income (E_TTERFTA=1—
statement for the year ended 31 December 2005 ALEFEBESRMERPE
are as follows: fth > ZBIEE FIRLAT -
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE  EERYUR OB CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT  ARETE AREFT ARETT
Depreciation g 3,434,649 445,501 17,992 3,898,142
Amortisation B 13,580 - - 13,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. pEHEFR (&)
(a) Primary reporting format by business (@) AXBIHBRETESBER
segment (Cont’d) (#&)
Segment assets and liabilities comprise EBOEEEMRBEHZDH
operating assets and liabilities that are directly BERELHENKEEENRABER
attributable to the segment. B °
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 HEZZT"F+-A=1—
December 2006 and capital expenditure for the HIEFE 2 HEfEE « BER
year then ended are as follows: BARMSZHS)RAT
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE  EERUR AAE CEl
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Segment assets NHEE 54,778,224 5,185,564 463,188 60,426,976
Investments in associates & &R B2 AT 498,295 10,760 114,335 623,390
Investments in jointly & E R &R
controlled entities ER 115,540 - - 115,540
Total assets EEAG 55,392,059 5,196,324 577,523 61,165,906
Segment liabilities &R (53,632,097) (3,992,814) (64,352)  (57,689,263)
Capital expenditure AR
(Note 14 & 15) (EBURI15) 15,566,384 1,170,712 52,623 16,789,719
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 HE_ZTTRF+-A=1—
December 2005 and capital expenditure for the HIEFEZHHEE - BER
year then ended are as follows: BARMZ HIIRAT
Cargo and
Passenger logistics Unallocated Total
XE  EERUR AAE CHl
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Seqment assets PHEE 52,560,982 5,182,541 425,553 58,169,076
Investments in associates & &M E AT 510,059 7,187 112,500 629,746
Investments in jointly & E R &R
controlled entities ER 100,520 - - 100,520
Total assets BEAG 53,171,561 5,189,728 538,053 58,899,342
Segment liabilities PHEE (48,461,886) (3,473,228) (45,686)  (51,980,800)
Capital expenditure R
(Note 14 & 15) (FEE1R15) 12,170,540 1,044,973 14,838 13,230,351
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b)

Secondary reporting format by geographical
segment

The Group’s two business segments operate in
four main geographical areas, even though they
are managed on a worldwide basis.

7.

DEHER (E)
(b) NEFHZBERXEREER

1$ ifo&i\ﬂ' $’$ .Z
ﬁhﬁiﬂﬂé%ﬁk 0

The Group’s revenues (net of business tax) by REE H @ 5 2 WA Ofl
geographical segment are analysed as follows: EEETEFRE) 2T -
Group
L |
2006 2005
—EERE _—_TThLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%T
Domestic (the PRC, A (P -
excluding Hong Kong) TBEERH) 20,803,441 13,357,972
Hong Kong Foe 3,244,846 3,150,123
Japan =[N 3,582,962 2,644,372
Other countries H 4t B =K 9,857,626 8,301,976
Total A&t 37,488,875 27,454,443

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group
are its aircraft, all of which are registered in
the PRC. Since the Group’s aircraft are deployed
flexibly across its route network, there is no
suitable basis of allocating such assets and the
related liabilities to geographical segments and
hence segment assets and capital expenditure
by geographic segment have not been
presented.

REEEZWARIFREREE
E o WERBIEMRPEARK
B - AN E 2 R EE

fRh BBER  REREEEE
KRB B RN R AR DR

EELRE - DRIt R IR AR 3 3 73 BB 2R
BREEENEARMES L -

PERAMERGAERAT —2FX
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8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS

8. TE HEREF

Group
58
2006 2005
“EEXRE C—EZERF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Wages, salaries, bonus IT& %< T4
and allowances o w5 Bh 2,476,924 1,579,292
Employee welfare and benefits  {& 8 48 #| &2 % z§ 295,185 166,267
Defined contribution retirement & %8B K& 5T &
schemes (Note 32(a)) (FEFE32(a)) 298,363 280,218
Post-retirement benefits EERNKEBEANER
(Note 32(b)) (FEHE32(b)) 146,968 102,459
Staff housing fund ETFFEES
(Note 33(a)) (FEH33(a)) 228,000 195,000
Staff housing allowance BT EEmaL
(Note 33(b)) (FEH33(b)) 30,656 36,231
3,476,096 2,359,467
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®

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(a) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and
senior management

Details of the emoluments paid to the
Company’s Directors, supervisors and senior
management are as follows:

TE - - HEREHN &)
(a) EE - EERSRTHRAER

KB &

SR ARIES BERSR
THAENME B TS
18

2006
—EEXRE
Salaries and
allowances Bonus Total
FeRkma AL R
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TRn AR%®TrR
Executive Directors HITES
Li Fenghua* FEE - - -
Luo Chaogeng* EEHER - - -
Cao Jainxiong* R - - -
Wan Mingwu* R - - -
Zhong Xiong* 0 1+ - - -
Luo Zhuping 7 157 - 157
Independent non- BEEAIT
executive Directors =
Hu Honggao* A 5 - _ _
Peter Lok * HEEm - - -
Wu Baiwang* XA - - -
Zhou Ruijin* Bl - - -
Xie Rong* R * - - -
Supervisors EE
Li Wenxin* =33 i - - -
Ba Shengji* BB A~ - - -
Yang Xingen 15 ¥R 149 - 149
Yang Jie 15 R 100 - 100
Liu Jiashun* 2R I * - - -
Vice executive Directors BIHITESE
Zhang Jianzhong 5% 22 176 - 176
Li Yangmin FER 156 - 156
Fan Ru B {E 454 - 454
Finance controller B 7 48 L
Luo Weide EEE 173 - 173
Total =i 1,365 - 1,365
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(a) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and

8. IE - HERERN ()
(a) EE - EERSRTHRAER

senior management (Cont’d) W< (&)
2005
—EETRF
Salaries and
allowances Bonus Total
e Rhh 4T ER=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARBFTT ARET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Fenghua* T - - -
Luo Chaogeng* EEHRR - - -
Cao Jainxiong* R - - -
Wan Mingwu* AR - - -
Zhong Xiong* G - - -
Luo Zhuping 7 UL 103 59 162
Independent non- BEHIT
executive Directors =
Hu Honggao* iR TS - - -
Peter Lok * HEm - - -
Wu Baiwang* RSB - - -
Zhou Ruijin* Aim e - - -
Xie Rong* R * - - -
Supervisors Ex
Li Wenxin* 33 i - - -
Ba Shengji* BB E~ - - -
Yang Xingen 15T AR 86 55 141
Yang Jie 152 66 49 115
Liu Jiashun* 2R g * - - -
Vice executive Directors BIHITESE
Wu Jiuhong ESANES 119 231 350
Zhou Liguo A2 E 126 352 478
Zhang Jianzhong R 101 93 194
Tong Guozhao KB R 121 352 473
Li Yangmin FER 90 55 145
Finance controller B4R B
Luo Weide EEE 111 75 186
Total =i 923 1,321 2,244
* Certain Directors of the Company received * AKRAEIESEFERALEILR

emoluments from CEA Holding, the parent
company, part of which is in respect of their
services to the Company and its subsidiaries.
No apportionment has been made as it is
impracticable to apportion this amount
between their services to the Group and their
services to CEA Holding.

H B 2 mR AR - A
BF ) B] AP B R A 55 (B S BREL
Bz - AR A FIEFER B
K F AR 7 AL 2| A5
B R BRI R - Fu
DR B EM R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

8.  WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(a) Emoluments of Directors, supervisors and
senior management (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no
Directors and supervisors waived their
emoluments (2005: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

One (2005: None) of the vice executive
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in
the above analysis were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group for the year. The
emoluments payable to the remaining four

8. IE - HERERN ()

(a) EE - EERSRTHRAER
BN & ()
RBRE-TTAF+-A=+
—HIEFE - WEEA—fL
EREEREEMNE (ZFT
FEF ) e

(b) EUBREFHAENHE
AEBRUGREHAES A
R REIMITEE (Z 22
| AMeE el
NEEEMEH - Hermf
—ETRF B RESHFA

(2005: five) highest paid individuals are as THB BN
follows:
Group
£
2006 2005
—EBXRFE —ZTTHHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TEx
Wages, salaries, bonus ITE %< B4
and allowances ol Bh 1,736 1,679

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e g BT

Number of individuals

A
2006 2005
Emolument band B & 4% Bl —EEXRE —ETFHF
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/8 7T A T~ 4 5

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors, supervisors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for
loss of office (2005: Nil).

RBE_TTRF+_A=+
—HILFE - AEERAA
ERBEAEMBELSTE
= EFEIRUSSFHAEL
e (TR « #) o

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

9. OPERATING LOSS/PROFIT

Operating loss/profit is stated after charging and

REBE aF

BRI ER T

crediting the following items: HBIR -
Group
£8
2006 2005
—E2ERE —ZTTNOHF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%Tr
Charging: Nk
Depreciation of property, ME - R
plant and equipment REIE 4,493,572 3,898,142
Operating lease rentals KREMHHENRS
- aircraft — R 2,954,751 1,785,615
- land and buildings — T MEF 276,715 212,027
Amortisation of BEEE#EHE
intangible assets 72,737 13,580
Amortisation of lease BRNEER
prepayments R 30,869 25,219
Consumption of flight 4 5% 1
equipment spare parts THIER 326,248 239,134
Allowances for obsolescence of M 3% & =
flight equipment spare parts PREEME 31,734 -
Deficits on revaluation of M - HER
property, plant and BRI
equipment AEE K 1,035,343 -
Provision for impairment of JE W B EL At JiE U
trade and other receivables TR B 97,805 25,325
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B & 20,120 10,000
Crediting: REtA
Reversal of allowances for SRR TR MBS
obsolescence of flight THRE
equipment spare parts 1 - 13,930
Gain on disposals of property, BRI - MR
plant and equipment K2 3% 8 36,207 8,073
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BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. RIE X H
Group
£8
2006 2005
—BERE _—TTHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®T
Interest relating to obligations FIEHEEE
under finance leases A
- wholly repayable —BRAEFAZHEE
within five years 244,962 195,764
- not wholly repayable —BERAFAEZHER
within five years 298,991 128,869
543,953 324,633
Interest on loans from RITRE M2 @
banks and financial HEERAE
institutions
- wholly repayable —BRAFAZEHEE
within five years 1,387,469 746,788
- not wholly repayable —BERAFAZHEER
within five years 193,067 243,433
1,580,536 990,221
Interest relating to R EBAE
notes payable 91,280 52,639
Amortisation of the discount TEERESH
on zero coupon debentures Hr 30 8 $4 25,456 22,944
Interest relating to & B FE 3UR) B
long-term payables 4,961 6,999
2,246,186 1,397,436
Less: Amounts capitalised into & @ & AL &R
advance payments on T KA
acquisition of aircraft R (FF’817)
(Note 17) (424,316) (279,989)
1,821,870 1,117,447
Net foreign exchange FIE N =
gains (Note) (FE#) (888,402) (414,640)
Fair value (gains)/losses TTHEEmMIA
on financial instruments (Yezk) /1B K
- transfer from equity in —FEEH R
respect of interest rate MEH - EmE A
swaps qualified as cash
flow hedges (55,889) 4,243
877,579 707,050
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

10.

11.

FINANCE COSTS (Cont'd)
Note:

The exchange gain for the year ended 31 December 2006
primarily relates to the revaluation of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated borrowings and obligations under
finance leases.

INCOME TAX

Income tax (credited)/charged to the consolidated
income statement is as follows:

10. RIE X H (&)

11.

iyim
AtAE -

NBE-TTAET-A=t—ALS
A S B A I R R
A R 58 -

PR

AEAERE GIA) MR BIE
T

Group
%£E
2006 2005
—EBERE —ETREF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AEBTT
Provision for PRC income tax o B AT 1S R R 48,072 (81,734)
Deferred taxation (Note 31) BIETIA (FEHE31) (211,004) (56,970)
(162,932) (138,704)

The Company is subject to PRC income tax at a reduced
rate of 15%, pursuant to the Circular Hu Shui Er Cai
(2001) No. 104 issued by the Shanghai Municipal Tax
Bureau. Developments relating to the reform of the
Corporate Income Tax Law are described in Note 44 to
the financial statements.

Two of the major subsidiaries of the Group, namely
China Cargo Airlines Co. Ltd. and Shanghai Eastern
Flight Training Co., Ltd, are subject to PRC income
tax at a reduced rate of 15%, pursuant to the
preferential tax policy in Pudong, Shanghai. Shanghai
Eastern Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Eastern Logistics”),
another subsidiary of the Group, was exempted from
PRC income tax in 2005 pursuant to the circular Hu
Di Shui Er Shui (2004) No.68 issued by the Shanghai
Municipal Tax Bureau. Eastern Logistics is subject to
PRC income tax at a reduced rate of 15% in 2006.
Other subsidiaries of the Group are generally subject
to the PRC corporate income tax at the standard rate
of 33%.

RIE_EEmi S T REm A RN
ZHF(2001) 1045%iR% - AR AIHY
TSI R ERE15% - B@EF
ERTSBUAR SR Rt B44 o

AARMEEZHBAGHHEE
MZEBRA R M EFRARITE
BRATE - SRR ERE LS
RS EEBREREL% 1R
BLESTERTEBEME =/
(2004) 685%3BE - BRI EMY
RERAG (R R=ZEZT
HERNFEHRTARH - R-TZ
ANECEMYAHNEABEA
15% ° AL B/ H A F R R AV E A
TR AT EIREFSHBIE33% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 1. HiE (58)

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress “EEHF=A+NB " 2REAR
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s REREEBT(PEARLNE
Republic of China which may impact on the future TEMSHE WEEFELRE
income tax rates of the Group. Details refer to Post EHARKRTEHE FREZERE
Balance Sheet Event (Note 44(b)). 18 (FHHE44(b)) ©

Tax on the Group’s consolidated income statement REERIFEBRROFIA - 8K
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise N R B B 2R 5 AR A B SR i PR EE A
using the taxation rate of the home country of the ZIERTREERENT

Company as follows:

Group
58
2006 2005
—BERE _—TTHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®TT
Loss before income tax B 7% B &S 18 (3,615,697) (577,432)
Adjusted by: R
Share of result of associates and B {5 & A &) & £ A
jointly controlled entities THEENES (133,161) 13,330
(3,748,858) (564,102)
Tax calculated at enacted Z15% X E R
tax rate of 15% Tt & H 562,329 84,615
Effect attributable to Pt B8 A R 17.5%3K%33%
subsidiaries charged P45 B8 151 &
at tax rate of 17.5% or 33% ok 27,969 18,334
Effect attributable to subsidiaries /& X &) A % A9
with income tax exemptions T 15 B W A - 33,852
Income not subject to taxation 78 F A UL A - 4,462
Expenses not deductible AN EOER
for tax purposes (13,852) (5,642)
Gain arising from intra-group SEARIEEE
property, plant and Bl F & EEMB
equipment disposal 9 WA
subject to taxation (46,578) -
Reversal of income tax provision EEE % FEE R
made in prior years as a R Bl LA B E
result of tax clearance with ZRREHBRTHER
local tax bureau H T 15 B 1B - 81,807
Utilisation of previously FRANTFERERN
recognised tax losses W% EE (23,130) -
Unrecognised tax losses RTHEARNTEEE (327,739) (86,074)
Other temporary differences EMABRYREER
not recognised (16,067) -
Others Hi - 7,350
Tax credit I8 § I8 162,932 138,704
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The Group operates international flights to overseas
destinations. There was no material overseas taxation
for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005, as
there are double tax treaties between the PRC and
the corresponding jurisdictions (including Hong Kong)
relating to aviation businesses.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during both the current
and prior years.

The Board of Directors of the Company has not
recommended any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2006. No final dividend was paid
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2005.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of RMB3,313,425,000 (2005: RMB467,307,000) and the
weighted average number of shares of 4,866,950,000
(2005: 4,866,950,000) in issue during the year.

The Company has no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares.

11.

12.

13.

BiE ()

AEEZEBRMAR  REXLE
SME B o f A B ERARRERY BlA
1B (BIEER) Ek T e S Em
%RE}:I/\EEJX ZKE.#@I—? = /\
FR-FERAF+_A=+—AHL

FEIEEXBIMIGK
8=\

ARBERFEER EFERLRE
IR HIAE
ARREZEDEBHE_TTN
FH-A=+T—HLEFENREE
RS ©

BREE
BREAREBIIZANARERTE
AEBEEAEBEBEBAREK
3,313,425,000T (ZZEZTHF : AR
#467,307,0007T) MEFE A E EETTHY
JntEFE9 M #4,866,950,000/% (—EE
T : 4,866,950,0000%) 51 &

ZAYNCIRI Y TRt e
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 4. B EE
Group
£
Sponsorship
Goodwill fees Computer
(Note (a))  (Note (b)) software
5k BnE i Total
(& (@a) (& (b)) gH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2005 W-ZEERFE—F—H 79,176 - 46,396 125,572
Additions through E e
business acquisitions # 0 609,135 - - 609,135
Other additions HtAE - - 38,568 38,568
At 31 December 2005 RZEZERHF
+-A=+—H 688,311 - 84,964 773,275
At 1 January 2006 RZZEEF—H—H 688,311 - 84,964 773,275
Additions through MR U E A A
the acquisition of ) 12 1l 1 i
of a controlling FfT 51 2 #9385 AN
interest in an (B 19%40)
associate
(Notes 19 & 40) 304,832 - 28 304,860
Other additions HEMAE - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals & - - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 RZZETRF
+ZA=1+— 993,143 320,000 118,573 1,431,716
Accumulated amortisation &5t 84
At 1 January 2005 R-ZZERF—A—H - - 7,852 7,852
Charge for the year 7N 85 - - 13,580 13,580
At 31 December 2005 RZZERF
+t-A=+— - - 21,432 21,432
At 1 January 2006 RZTEERF—HA—H - - 21,432 21,432
Charge for the year AN - 52,870 19,867 72,737
Disposals HE - - (7) (7)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF
+=-—A=+—8 - 52,870 41,292 94,162
Net book amount BREFE
At 31 December 2005 RZEZTRF
+=-A=+—H 688,311 - 63,532 751,843
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEREF
+=—A=+—H 993,143 267,130 77,281 1,337,554
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd) 14. B & E (B
Company
A
Sponsorship
Goodwill fees Computer
(Note (a))  (Note (b)) software
(R B8 ER Total
(F#(a)) (& () L QLS #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AREFT ARBTT ARETT
Cost B AR
At 1 January 2005 N_EERFE—-—H—H 79,176 - 45,240 124,416
Additions through E A
business acquisitions 2N 609,135 - - 609,135
Other additions HiRE - - 38,568 38,568
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTLEF
+-A=+—H 688,311 - 83,808 772,119
At 1 January 2006 RZEZERF—H—HB 688,311 - 83,808 772,119
Additions NE - 320,000 33,617 353,617
Disposals HE - - (36) (36)
At 31 December 2006 RZZETRE
+Z-A=+—8 688,311 320,000 117,389 1,125,700
Accumulated amortisation £ &t ## &4
At 1 January 2005 A\_ZEThF—-H—H - - 7,171 7,171
Charge for the year REHH - - 13,357 13,357
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZEZRF
+ZA=+—H” - - 20,528 20,528
At 1 January 2006 RZTEERF—HA—H - - 20,528 20,528
Charge for the year REHH - 52,870 19,630 72,500
Disposals HE - - (7) (7)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF
+ZA=+—H” - 52,870 40,151 93,021
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTLEF
+-A=+—8 688,311 - 63,280 751,591
At 31 December 2006 RZZEERF
+-A=+—8H 688,311 267,130 77,238 1,032,679
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill
The Group operates in two cash-generating units
(“CGU") which are passenger (including cargo carried
by passenger flights) and cargo and logistics.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the aviation businesses
in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

- Gross margin 14%-17%
- Growth rate 10%-16%
- Discount rate 10%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for market
development. The weighted average growth rate used
is consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the Company’s business.

(b) Sponsorship fees

In March 2006, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “Sponsorship Agreement”) with the
Bureau of 2010 Expo Shanghai (the “Bureau”) which
designated the Group as the exclusive airline
passenger carrier in the PRC to sponsor the 2010
Shanghai Expo. The Company will be entitled to a
number of rights, including but not limited to the
use of the Expo logo in the Group’s products, priority
to purchase advertising space at the Expo site etc.
In return, the Company is required to pay a total
sponsorship fee of RMB320 million, RMB160 million
of which would be paid in cash by installments, the
remaining RMB160 million would be settled by value-
in-kind services (“VIK”) (in the form of goods or
services) to support the 2010 Shanghai Expo.
Accordingly, an intangible asset has been recognised
and amortised on straight-line basis over the
beneficial period from the effective date of the
Sponsorship Agreement to the completion of the
Expo. The outstanding sponsorship fee of RMB279
million has also been recognised as other long-term
liabilities (Note 30) in the Group’s balance sheet.

14.

BREE (&)

G =g

(a)

(b)

TR Y 60 B R A
AEEREMERCELETLS
BIREE (BREMES ULE
BRI

ReEABTma oS BERE
EREEE - EIANAR
AR ERETEA - RIFEIEEH
ZRAFHM RIS - BiB%h
FHINN S MELRA A TPty
BEHIEREIENES - ZEEE
THEBARCELEUSENER
ZEXBNRATFOERE -

EREEFENTIERRMOT

—FH=E 14%-17%
— R 10%-16%
—BAIR = 10%

EEERBBERRRELTS
BEMBUABTEETHE - 5
AR T I RERTER
ERBABAT A —H o A
0537 35 7 B4 4T L 2 R 4
HEHEERR -

B

RZZEZRF=R AQFHE
BT —EFHEEeRBHHA
PEIEDHEIERREEA T
—ZF bgttiE e —hEpRE
BEAEBME - ARAIAZEH
BEBEBRRR) FAEEE
MEERAEENERLE 25
BEtEeS I BESEUNESL
#E - ARAREXFARES320
AETHNEDE  UXEHE_ZT—
THEEe  Eh ARE16068
TAEDHYNNIRE 8 THA
RE160E BT RS HEYS
M (EZAEWMERY) - £EE
BEABRPHEDHECHER
BELEE WEFEETED
BEENB AR B EANT S
ERNA B R T LS - It BB
RS EAARE2I95E T H
HENEMNREERABEMER
B1& GERE30) -

FERARERAERAT —STAFER
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 5 ~ R R

Group
&H
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
e RBRRRERE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned JARE  Buildings HMYWE-  in progress Total
HE HERA BT HERRE HERIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Valuation or cost TEE/ HAE
At 1 January 2005 RZZETRE
—-A-A 26,142,685 13,452,651 2,254,015 2,274,961 188,654 44,312,966
Transfers from construction ~ HEETIZE A
in progress - - 33,582 116,985 (150,567) -
Transfers from advance EREBHRT
payments on acquisition of B A (FFH17)
aircraft (Note 17) 445,949 1,191,167 - - - 1,637,116
Additions through business ¥ MWE
acquisitions #10 4,781,327 2,155,855 72,222 293,429 13,577 7,316,410
Other additions ERE 1,952,356 991,640 71,451 424,455 189,220 3,629,122
Disposals HE (67,354) - (6,281)  (125,299) - (198,934)
At 31 December 2005 RZETRE
+ZA=+—H 33,254,963 17,791,313 2,424,989 2,984,531 240,884 56,696,680
Accumulated depreciation ZHME
At 1 January 2005 RZZTRHE
-A-H 9,638,471 3,264,609 392,209 1,123,681 - 14,418,970
Charge for the year REEHE 2,307,706 1,161,395 87,284 341,757 - 3,898,142
Disposals e (66,030) - (159)  (79,111) - (145,300)
At 31 December 2005 R_EBLF
+ZA=Z1+—-A2 11,880,147 4,426,004 479,334 1,386,327 - 18,171,812
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2005 R_ZERE
+-A=+—H 21,374,816 13,365,309 1,945,655 1,598,204 240,884 38,524,868
At 1 January 2005 RZZZRE
—-A-H 16,504,214 10,188,042 1,861,806 1,151,280 188,654 29,893,996
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. Y5 ~ MR R E (E)
Group
£
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R BBERRERE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases ment Construction
Owned J\RE  Buildings ﬁM in progress Total
5% mReE 65 BERRE REIE  ab
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTR
Valuation or cost TEE/ AR
At 1 January 2006 RZZENE
-A- 33,254,963 17,791,313 2,424,989 2,984,531 240,884 56,696,680
Reclassification upon RERENE
a purchase 2,011,940 (2,011,940) - - - -
Transfers from construction ~ {EETIZE A
in progress - - 52,832 242,669 (295,501) -
Transfers from advance R
payments on acquisition ﬁ 3@}7\
of aircraft (Note 17) (817 3,797,430 2,591,545 - - - 6,388,975
Additions through the R
acquisitions of B2 DN EE g
controlling interests BaFale
in associates H3E
(Note 40) (7 E40) 78,291 305,663 303,064 33,292 2,447 722,757
Other additions EtAE 5,612,187 2,724,601 - 384,743 297,979 9,019,510
Valuation deficit FRED AR (939,655)  (95,688) - - - (1,035,343)
Transfer to non-current BAGES
assets held for sale mEEE
(Note (b) & 37) (B (0)R37)  (2108,763)  (202,898) - - - (2,311,661)
Disposals by sale and ERRERHZ
leaseback (Note (c)) RE(FEE()  (7,940,164) - - - - (7,940,164)
Other disposals EfiE (314,615) - (41,639)  (131,322) - (487,576)
At 31 December 2006 R-ZBTXF
+ZA=+—H 33,451,614 21,102,596 2,139,246 3,513,913 245,809 61,053,178
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE
At 1 January 2006 RZZEENE
—-A—8 11,880,147 4,426,004 479,334 1,386,327 - 18,171,812
Reclassification upon RERENE
a purchase 940,464 (940,464) - - - -
Charge for the year REEHE 2,600,331 1,418,781 106,441 368,019 - 4,493,572
Transfer to non-current BAGEH
assets held for sale mBEE
(Note b & 37) (FEEG)R37)  (1,346,228)  (121,049) - - - (1,467,277)
Disposals k= (97,146) - (3,703) (94,546) - (195,395)
At 31 December 2006 RZBTRE
+ZA=+—H 13,977,568 4,783,272 582,072 1,659,800 - 21,002,712
Net book amount RHTFE
At 31 December 2006 RZEETRE
+ZA=+—H 19,474,046 16,319,324 2,157,174 1,854,113 245,809 40,050,466
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE
—A—H 21,374,816 13,365,309 1,945,655 1,598,204 240,884 38,524,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. Y5 ~ MR R E (E)

Company
A
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R ABRRRRRE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned J\M¥&  Buildings HAE¥%- in progress Total

HE HERs BT HERRE HBIR At
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMB000
ARBETL ARBTT AREBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR

Valuation or cost HEE/RARME
At 1 January 2005 RZZTHE
—A—H 20,068,300 13,452,651 1,370,995 1,491,533 77,534 36,461,013
Transfer to a subsidiary EAWBERA (779,895) - - - - (779,895)
Transfers from construction ~ HEERTIEEA
in progress - - 18,847 16,582 (35,429) -
Transfers from advance femER
payments on acquisition DTN
of aircraft (Note 17) (FB1) 445,949 682,020 - - - 1,127,969
Additions through business %MW
acquisitions 0 4,781,327 2,155,855 72,222 293,429 13,577 7,316,410
Other additions ERE 1,138,394 375,995 14,195 341,339 33,120 1,903,043
Disposals e (67,354) - (2,836)  (106,801) - (176,991)
At 31 December 2005 RZETRE
+ZA=1+—H 25586721 16,666,521 1,473,423 2,036,082 88,802 45,851,549
Accumulated depreciation ZHME
At 1 January 2005 RZZEZRE
=t = 6,847,515 3,264,609 264,374 829,672 - 11,206,170
Transfer to a subsidiary EAWBERA (599,975) - - - - (599,975)
Charge for the year REEHE 1,780,387 1,119,334 53,914 265,721 - 3,219,356
Disposals e (66,030) - (106)  (69,993) - (136127)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZTRF
+-A=+-H 7,961,807 4,383,943 318,184 1,025,400 - 13,689,424
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2005 R-_ZEL%F
TZA=1—F 17,624,824 12,282,578 1,155,239 1,010,682 88,802 32,162,125
At 1 January 2005 RZZZRE
—-H—H 13,220,785 10,188,042 1,106,621 661,861 77,534 25,254,843
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BRI FR)

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’'d)

15. 95 ~ #ea s fE ()

Company
NHE
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R BHERRERE
Held Other
under property,
finance plant and
leases equipment Construction
Owned J\M¥&  Buildings HAE¥%- in progress Total
HE HERA BT HERRE ERIE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTR
Valuation or cost ¥ E@/ﬁf@
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE
—-A-A 25,586,721 16,666,521 1,473,423 2,036,082 88,802 45,851,549
Reclassification upon RERENE
a purchase 2,011,940 (2,011,940) - - - -
Transfer to a subsidiary EAWBARA (482,982) - - - - (482,982)
Transfers from construction ~ HAETREA
in progress - - 25,507 12,210 (37,7117) -
Transfers from advanced feRER
payments on acquisition of  TFEA
aircraft (Note 17) (FE1) 3,744,513 1,843,577 - - - 5,588,090
Other additions Hﬁﬂ/d\\ 4,812,055 2,345,391 40,491 271,479 100,145 7,560,561
Valuation deficit AERERR (939,655)  (95,688) - - - (1,035,343)
Transfer to non-current assets L)\H ek
held for sale (Note 37) EE(EE3)  (2,108,763)  (202,898) - - - (2,311,661)
Disposals by sale and ERRERHZ
leaseback (Note (c)) RE(FEE()  (7,940,164) - - - - (7,940,164)
Other disposals & (313,016) - (36,277) (107,363 - (456,656)
At 31 December 2006 RIEERE
FZA=ZT—H 24370,649 18,544,963 1,503,144 2,212,408 151,230 46,782,394
Accumulated depreciation Eﬂ?%
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE
—-A—-H 7,961,897 4,383,943 318,184 1,025,400 - 13,689,424
Reclassification upon RERENE
a purchase 940,464 (940,464) - - - -
Transfer to a subsidiary BAWBAA (458,832) - - - - (458,832)
Charge for the year TEERE 1,939,393 1,317,355 54,726 274,242 - 3,585,716
Transfer to non-current assets & A5 &R E
held for sale (Note 37) BEGEE3T)  (1,346,208)  (121,049) - - - (1,467,277)
Disposals e (97,146) - (2,997)  (73,362) - (173,505)
At 31 December 2006 R-ZZEXF
+ZA=+—H 8,939,548 4,639,785 369,913 1,226,280 - 15,175,526
Net book amount EE@)%@
At 31 December 2006 R-ZZERE
JF H +—H 15,431,101 13,905,178 1,133,231 986,128 151,230 31,606,868
At 1 January 2006 RZEERE
—-A-H 17,624,824 12,282,578 1,155,239 1,010,682 88,802 32,162,125
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(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
Bz —TENFr-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Notes:
(a) On 31 December 2006, the Group’s aircraft, engines

(b)

and flight equipment were revalued by the Directors
of the Company on a market value basis or
replacement cost basis based on the valuations
conducted by independent valuers.

The result of the revaluation revealed a deficit of
RMB1,035 million for certain aircraft and related
equipment which has been charged to the income
statement. Except for the aircraft and related
equipment referred to above, the revalued amounts
of all other assets under revaluation are not
materially different from their carrying amounts.
Accordingly, the carrying values of these assets have
not been adjusted in the consolidated financial

statements as at 31 December 2006.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group

15. 95 ~ #ea s fE ()

(@)

R-ZERE+T_A=+t—8"
ARBNEREATGERAER
P AE I 2 BRI L RHE AR ) 3R &
HAKERORM - HSH IR
RiBEHELR

ST E TR AR BT E
AR ERER KN AREL035
BETEREBERRFIE - B
Lt ey R AARERR AN - H R
BEMEMERIREBELZEEXR
=2 o Ht }5/\77 7/\£|E+

RA=+—B2EEMBHmRERIMLZ
FEEMRAERBIELEI -

1E’++ZIK'§@&$’ATE’]¢%¥ #

and the Company been stated at cost less BB AR ZFHITER
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, the ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ']ﬁ% T HEERE
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment HEFERKE TS
would have been as follows:
Group Company
£8 AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
—ERERF —TTRE ZEERF _—_TITHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT AR%®TR AR®TTT
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 40,475,461 37,943,085 32,108,040 31,796,398
In December 2006, the Board of Directors passed a (by RZZZERF+R EFEB

resolution to dispose the aircraft and the related
equipment with the valuation deficit as described in
the note 15(a) above and have been actively seeking
buyers subsequent to the pass of the resolution.
The assets have been reclassified as “Non-current
assets held for sales” at 31 December 2006 (Note

37).

BABLEN A AR
BEEXHRE R EABERENZ
R ARAERBEREDHER
SHRAENER - RZZEZEREF
WL—H_TL A WEEERE
RIFEIERDEE GIE37) -

164

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. W) 2% - I RRE (@

Notes: (Cont'd) HE (8

(c) During the year, the Group entered into sale and (c) AEERETFERETHSIHD
leaseback transactions for certain newly acquired RFRT SR EMAR®E - GBS
aircraft. There leaseback transactions are classified EEIAEKEEERE - HAEH
as operating leases and the related gains arising B EEERFEBRRERPER -
from these sales and leaseback transactions have
been recognised in the income statement.

(d)  As at 31 December 2006, aircraft owned by the Group d) RZZEERF+—A=+—8"
and the Company with an aggregate net book amount REBERRABEREFENBA
of approximately RMB9,044 million and RMB8,310 R#9,044B BT ARS,3108
million respectively (2005: RMB9,074 million) were B (ZETRF : ARK9,0748
pledged as collateral under certain loan arrangements BT MRIKE AIEE TERBE
(Note 28). BV (FEFE28) o

16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16. S HER
Group Company
£H NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
“BEXRE —TThHF ZBERE —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARE®TR

Cost 57N

At 1 January —A—B&% 1,134,644 965,462 582,621 486,168

Additions through business 3£ 75 U B 1 hn

acquisitions (Note 40) (FE’40) 75,302 74,339 - 74,339

Other additions H 432 fn 37,158 94,843 33,932 22,114

At 31 December TZA=T—H&H 1,247,104 1,134,644 616,553 582,621

Accumulated amortisation R & # 8

At 1 January —A—B#&&% 161,873 136,654 101,021 89,687

Charge for the year NF 30,869 25,219 17,864 11,334

At 31 December tZRA=1T—H#&# 192,742 161,873 118,885 101,021

Net book amount BRERE

At 31 December TZRA=+—H#&% 1,054,362 972,771 497,668 481,600
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

16.

17.

LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Cont’'d)

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments
for land use rights.

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC
and the majority of these land use rights have terms
of 50 years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2006, the majority of these land use rights had
remaining terms ranging from 40 to 55 years (2005:
from 41 to 49 years).

16. BNAHAER (&)

BNHEER I AREHOTAN L1
EAREMEESA -

REBEFTA B LI ERES AR
T RER D L3 {56 MR Rl R
RAEEREAESDLTF - R=F
ERETZA=+—H  K&Hs
T RRERIBRET Al F H A+
ERTREF(ZETRF  W+—
EM+AF) -

ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF 17. REETEF R
AIRCRAFT
Group Company
58 NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE _TITHF ZBEARE _ITITIHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%BTR ARKETR
At 1 January —A—B&E#% 9,072,673 2,678,603 8,157,515 2,678,603
Additions 1 4,560,694 7,751,197 4,059,327 6,341,709
Interest capitalised ER(LFE
(Note 10) (%10 424,316 279,989 378,101 265,172
Transfers to property, BEYE
plant and equipment Mg LR
(Note 15) (FE¥15) (6,388,975) (1,637,116) (5,588,090) (1,127,969)
At 31 December +-ZA=+—H#%#% 7,668,708 9,072,673 7,006,853 8,157,515

Included in the Group’s and the Company’s balance as
at 31 December 2006 is accumulated interest
capitalised of RMB516 million (2005: RMB410 million),
at an average interest rate of 5.7% (2005: 4.0%).

R-ZZEXFE+-_A=+—H0 ' K
SERARBIEHRFHRBENE
FMEAFHBARKES1688ET(Z
ZTRF - AR®410887T) - F
HEREME AR 7% (ZZEZTH
F 1 4.0%) °

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. RERHBLQF

Company
YN

2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRHF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Unlisted shares, at cost FLEMEENKAE 2,831,235 2,163,864
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JE UL B A 7 ZIE 1,051,435 348,626
3,882,670 2,512,490

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are not repayable before 1 January
2008.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which
are limited liability companies established and
operating in the PRC or Hong Kong, are as follows:

Place and date Paid-up
Company of establishment capital
ACIEE ! LB K B BEWEX
2006 2005

“EENE —ZTTRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR

PRI B A BIFIRIG RERER - 2
BRIER-ZZEZNF—H—HAHI

{E1& -
AEENTRMB ARG RETE

EEBERINEENBREMER
Al HARBROT

Attributable
equity interest Principal activities
BiERAER TEXH
2006 2005

“EENE —TIZIRE

China Eastern Airlines PRC 880,000 880,000
Jiangsu Co., Ltd. 3 May 1993
hER G ELH HE
BRAR “N=E
TA=H
China Eastern Airlines PRC 600,000 600,000
Wuhan Co., Ltd. 16 August 2002
(“CEA Wuhan") H
hERAMERE ZETF
BREERF NA+ARH
(TRMEE])
China Cargo Airlines PRC 500,000 500,000
Co., Ltd. 22 July 1998
TEEEMEERAR  HE
—ANE
tAZ+ZH

63% 63%  Provision of airline services

RAEMZE RS

96% 40%  Provision of airline services

RAEMZE RS

70% 70%  Provision of cargo
carriage services

REENEG RS

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 18. RENH B A 7 (&)
Place and date Paid-up Attributable
Company of establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
DNRER B8R A BEhEX BiERAER TEXH
2006 2005 2006 2005

“REAF CTTHF CBEAE CITRA
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRI

Shanghai Eastern Flight PRC 473,000 473,000 95% 95%  Provision of flight
Training Co., Ltd. 18 December 1995 training services
LRRARTE e RRATINR RS

BRAT —ANEF
+ZA+NAH
Shanghai Eastern Airlines PRC 412,500 412,500 99% 99%  Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. 8 May 2002 RERR
TERMRERRAR HE
—TZ-
TANA
Shanghai Eastern Airlines PRC 200,000 200,000 70% 70%  Provision of cargo
Logistics Co., Ltd. 23 August 2004 logistics services
TRRAERDR e RESENRRSE
ERAT ZTEWE
NAZ+=H
Eastern Airlines PRC 70,000 70,000 86% 86%  Provision of hotel
Hotel Co., Ltd. 18 March 1998 services primarily
ERMABEERDA H to crew members
—ANNEF FERARITABRY
=A+NH BIE RS
Shanghai Eastern PRC 25,658 25,658 60% 60%  Provision of aircraft
Maintenance Co., Ltd. 27 November 2002 repair and maintenance
LBRARKEE HE services
BERAT e g2 RERKERER
+-A=t++H AERE
China Eastern Airlines PRC 10,047 10,162 80% 40%  Provision of ticket
Development (HK) Co., Ltd. 20 May 1995 sales and logistics
TERAMERR e REHERZRAM
(BB)BRRTA —ANEF ERR%
BA-1H
China Eastern Airlines PRC 10,000 10,000 55% 55%  Provision of airline
(Shantou) Economics 18 March 1998 equipment sales
Development Co., Ltd. H EEREMZERm
BAMzEOLE) &E —AANF
ERERAA ZA+tNAH

168 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(B A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. RERBE LT

Group Company
£ N
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_TTHF ZBERE —TITIHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR AR®Tn
Unlisted investments, FELETREN
at cost XA 1E 544,266 763,240 377,872 620,659
Goodwill EES - 47,060 - -
Share of post acquisition {54 B 1%
results/reserves ES V41 79,124 (180,554) - -
623,390 629,746 377,872 620,659
The movement on investments in associates is as RERBE R TNERT -
follows:
Group Company
£ N
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_TTRHE ZEEREFE —ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR¥ETR ARBTI
At 1 January —A—B&E#% 629,746 633,212 620,659 615,095
Cost of additional EEEN
investment X R - 5,564 - 5,564
Reduction as a result of EERNEE L lNE]
the acquisition of a 72 Tl HE 25 P 5L R
controlling interest in BB 2 (7 40)
an associate (Note 40) (109,922) - (242,787) -
Share of results BhEE 103,566 (9,030) - -
At 31 December TZA=tT—H#&# 623,390 629,746 377,872 620,659
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal associates, all of which
are limited liability companies established and

19. REREE 2 5 (&)
AN B E BB DR R EK
U REENEREMLR - LA

operating in the PRC, are as follows: BERAT
Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
NEER B it % K B EWER 3PN £ TEXRK
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARBTE —BEAE —BIEF
Qingdao Liuting PRC 450,000 25% 25%  Provision of airport
International Airport 1 December 2000 operation services
Co., Ltd. i & RUBIS2ERS
EERTHERRS —TTETF
AREFERA +=HA—H
Eastern Air Group PRC 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
Finance Co., Ltd. 6 December 1995 services to group
(“EAGF") th companies of CEA
EMEEMBER —NEF Holding
BEAERA +ZAKA RYBERMEEET
(T8 %) RRRH A 5 R
China Eastern Air PRC 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air
Catering Investment 17 November 2003 catering services
Co., Ltd. & RUMEERRHK
RAMZERMERE —ZT=
BRERA T—A++tH
Jiangsu Huayu General ~ PRC 110,000 27% 27%  Provision of aviation
Aviation Co., Ltd. 1 Dec 2004 support services
IHEFERME & REME SRR
ARRA —ZTTMF
+ZHA—H
Eastern Aviation Import  PRC 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
& Export Co., Ltd. 9 June 1993 equipment, spare
(“EAIECT) th parts and tools trading
RAMZEERO —WN=% EERE - RITRER
BERA NANA RIIREEHES
(TRAELA])
Collins Aviation PRC 57,980 35% 35%  Provision of airline

Maintenance Service

Shanghai Ltd.
BRI M EEE

REER A

27 September 2002
&
—2ECF

AAZ+tH

electronic product

maintenance services
REMBESEM

EERY
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 19. RENHBE A7 (&)
Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
NEER B i B R B BEWER [ PN - TEXR
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARBTL —BEAF —TIEF

Shanghai Dongmei PRC 51,369 27.16% 45%  Provision of traveling
Aviation Travel Co., 17 October 2004 and accommodation
Ltd. (“SDATC") th agency services

FEREMERE e s R fOB IR
BRRA TA++tA EBERERS
(RERT])

Shanghai Hongpu PRC 25,000 30% 30%  Provision of cable and
Civil Airport 18 October 2002 wireless
Communication th communication
Co., Ltd. T -F services

TBIBRAKS +A+N\B REBRRER
BEARAT BARY

Eastern Aviation PRC 10,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Advertising Services 4 March 1986 advertising agency
Co., Ltd. h services

TERAMEESF —WARE RERERM
ARAR = AmA BEER

Note: TR

The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets

AEEEBEBERRNBA - X5 &

and liabilities of its associates are as follows: ERBEFRETE:
Profit/ (loss)
Assets  Liabilities Revenues AL
BE af& ' ON (E#8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT ARETIT AR®ETFIT
2006 —EERE 1,728,738 1,105,449 1,221,191 103,566
2005 —ZTTRF 1,807,387 1,177,641 887,928 (9,030)
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

20. RERLAREFIEE

ENTITIES
Group Company
&8 AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z2ERF —TTHHE ZBEARE _—ITTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%®TR ARETRT
Unlisted investments, FLETRER
at cost RAE 59,552 59,552 59,522 59,552
Share of post-acquisition {5 U BE 12
results/reserves ES P41 55,988 40,968 - -
115,540 100,520 59,522 59,552
The movement on investments in jointly controlled KERLRIESIERENZEHOT -
entities is as follows:
Group Company
58 A
2006 2005 2006 2005
“E2EXRE —_TTHF ZBEXRE —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 1 January —A—B&# 100,520 52,948 59,552 7,680
Cost of additional 1 hN4% & B R AR
investment - 51,872 - 51,872
Dividend received IR U B B9 AR B
during the year (14,575) - - -
Share of results BhEE 29,595 (4,300) - -
At 31 December tZA=1+—H#&#% 115,540 100,520 59,552 59,552
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BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities,
all of which are limited liability companies established

and operating in the PRC are as follows:

20. RERHLEEFIEERE (&)

AREREBHETHERY AT
B RSB ERAERR - &
ERERIT -

Place and Attributable
date of Paid-up equity
Company establishment capital interest Principal activities
DAER B3 B K B H EWER FE4G R A i 25 TEXH
RMB'000 2006 2005
ARBTE —BEXE —BIEF

Shanghai Technologies ~ PRC 113,843 51% 51%  Provision of repair and
Aerospace Co., Ltd. 28 September 2004 maintenance services
(“STA") (Note (a)) o REEREER R

FEREFRARRA —TETWE BERE
(IR T NAZTNB (GEE(@)

(FTE(a))

Shanghai Eastern PRC 17,484 40% 40%  Provision of spare parts
Union Aviation 28 December 1995 repair and
Wheels & Brakes h maintenance services
Overhaul Engineering — LN EF REZHBERS
Co., Ltd +ZAZ+N\H
(“Wheels & Brakes")

TEREREREAE
AEIEBERATA
(ME&w=])

Eastern China Kaiya PRC 10,000 41% 41%  Provision of computer
System Integration 21 May 1999 systems development
Co., Ltd. i & RUEERES

FERMERITZSE —NANF ERRG
SRARADA EA=F-8

Notes: R

(a) Under a Joint Venture Agreement dated 10 March
2003, the Company has agreed to share control over
the economic activities of STA. Any strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the
activities of STA require the unanimous consent of

the Company and the other joint venture partner.

(@) REARFARETH A —EE

BREFTR _TZ=F=A+HE
ENBARERZE  ARARE
AR ERETRARAZAERET
AR R B VA IR o (EfRTERRY
RFMIGENA BB I R R
REERARFEARETFTH S —
BERETRE-BHWRE -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. RENHEEHIEHE (8)

ENTITIES (Cont'd)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results,

T (8

(b) ZAEEEEHFIEHRAKA

assets and liabilities of its jointly controlled entities XE BERBREFRTR:
is as follows:

Profit/ (loss)
Assets  Liabilities Revenues =R
BE af& WA (EB#8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTTT AREFTIT AREBTT AR®BTT
2006 —EEXRE 314,348 125,479 171,471 29,595
2005 —TTARF 142,667 42,147 133,570 (4,300)

21. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

21 HittRHIEE

Group Company
£H AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
“BEXRE —TThHF ZBERE —TTILF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT AR®TrR ARETT
Deposits relating to B R
aircraft under operating HEREE
leases (Note (a)) #fF R (T (a) 532,878 446,323 449,055 425,850
Held-to-maturity financial 3548 £ 3K
assets (Note (b)) TREE (FFE (b)) 389,871 2,026,220 389,871 2,026,220
Prepaid staff benefits BN EIRA
(Note (c)) (FEE(c) 54,898 62,096 44,524 54,178
Rental and renovation MERZET2
deposits 31,338 34,777 31,338 34,777
Prepaid customs duty and ~ FERT B &
value added tax EN - 4,756 - 4,756
Other long-term receivables £ i & 5 & U 7018 90,280 131,386 79,941 50,740
1,099,265 2,705,558 994,729 2,596,521
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_TEXNFT_A=+—HIFFE

21.

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS (Cont’d)

21. e RHEE (8)

Notes: R
(a) The fair value of deposits relating to aircraft under (a) ANEERARQRERMCE R
operating leases of both the Group and the Company ERENTRZAREBED A
are RMB480 million and RMB414 million (2005: ARB480E B LR ARK414T
RMB446 million and RMB426 million), which are BN (ZETRTF - ARM4468
determined using the expected future payments B AREL26EET) ME
discounted at market interest rates prevailing at AREEEREBERINIRER
the year end of 2.5%-4.0% (2005: 4.4%). i?ﬁf—cxmiﬁf‘J$2.5°/OI4.0°/er
HH)(ZTTRHEF © 4.4%) ©
(b)  Held-to-maturity financial assets comprise long-term (b) BHEIHANMKEEBRIERE
bank deposits which are pledged as collateral under RITF R ARERE RS THE
certain finance lease arrangements (Note 27). The RE (A7) - REBITER
deposits have maturities of 1-2 years. The fair value RFHHR A—EMF - A&EE
of long-term bank deposits of both the Group and &ZF’D\ﬂEHﬂfEHT_%’\ZA/LTE
the Company are RMB1,249 million (2005: RMB2,114 BARKL298E T (ZEZ
million), which are determined using the expected F:ARK2114E8ET) - Z\\ft
future payments discounted at market interest rates EEREERL NS IE&@XI
prevailing at the year end of 2.6% (2005: 2.5% to EHHFE2.6%TEN (TR
6.5%). F 1 2.5%ZE6.5%) °
Group Company
58 N
2006 2005 2006 2005
“EEXE CZTTRE CZEBEEXRE CZITThE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARETR
Held-to-maturity financial RENHBEMBE
assets BE 1,199,250 2,026,220 1,195,650 2,026,220
Less: Held-to-maturity B EZIHAN
fiancial assets - current ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% mE
portion (Note 23) n(E23) (809,379) - (805,779) -
Held-to-maturity finacial HEIMBEMES
asets - Long term portion BE-REH R 389,871 2,026,220 389,871 2,026,220
(c)  Prepaid staff benefits represent subsidies to certain (¢ ENEIBMAHEIEIREENR

employees as an encouragement to purchase motor
vehicles. The employees are required to serve the
Group for six years from the date of receipt of the
subsidies. If the employee leaves before the end of
the six-year period, a refund by the employee is
required calculated on a pro-rata basis. These
subsidies are amortised over six years on the straight-
line basis.

BRI MR o B AR
METHEEBRIZMBRERA
SEERBRNFATTEREEW
AR - EETHENFHRZ
RIBEFAEE - ZB T HELM
ARASFERROLL I EE R -
BELABAOED NFHH -

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 22. EWERF R EWEE

The credit terms given to trade customers are BTERENEERENEREZER
determined on an individual basis, with the credit BREE  ATHFEAZE=EA
periods generally ranging from half a month to three o
months.
The aging analysis of trade receivables and notes JE W BR R K FE UL SR AR ) BR R 0 AT 2R
receivable is as follows: N

Group Company

58 NG

2006 2005 2006 2005

“EEAF “TTRF —BEAF _TITRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE ARMTL ARTRE ARMTE

Less than 31 days DPR=+—8H 1,556,144 1,580,082 955,992 1,031,946
31 to 60 days =+—Z%X+H 147,439 134,095 83,669 56,918
61 to 90 days AT—EZh+A 44,602 122,377 24,300 108,014
91 to 180 days n+—Aa%
—B/A+AH 132,977 34,097 90,573 14,603
181 to 365 days —BAT—RZE
=BATHAR 102,534 13,302 87,187 11,523
Over 365 days BB=—A,~1THH 112,934 127,466 108,403 118,986
2,096,630 2,011,419 1,350,124 1,341,990
Less: provision for B R K
impairment of PERER
receivables (93,775) (93,010) (89,552) (81,707)
Trade receivables and JRE W BR 3R % R LR
notes receivable, net ZRFE 2,002,855 1,918,409 1,260,572 1,260,283
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. AR - FRRHEMEWRK
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
£ N
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EEZRE —TTERE ZEERFE —ZTTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR
Held-to-maturity financial A ZEHHE/

assets - current portion BE-R#HM

(Note 21(b)) (FE’21(b)) 809,379 - 805,779 -
Rebates receivable on TN B T e U

aircraft acquisitions o] 40 X 627,641 102,582 593,202 78,314
Prepaid aircraft operating 8 I+ FROM 48 & 1

lease rentals HEME 315,470 191,211 270,998 174,248
Prepayment for acquisition BB RITRE X

of flight equipment and HiEETR

other assets DE:S 178,577 179,206 162,749 179,206
Custom duties and JE U B Y %

value added EE

tax recoverable REN (FFEa)

(Note (a)) 87,684 124,917 24,550 66,887
Rental deposits HE 2 86,822 49,303 71,159 37,116
Deposits with banks and Hia=1EA

a financial institution BLR—%F

with original maturity )52 B fF R

over three months (FE¥b)

but less than a year

(Note (b)) 38,343 175,332 20,143 8,888
Others Hib 332,076 174,720 225,324 143,884

2,475,992 997,271 2,173,904 688,543

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH
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23. PREPAYMENTS,

RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Notes:

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

(a) Pursuant to the Caiguanshui [2004] No. 63 issued
by the Ministry of Finance on 29 December 2004,
PRC airlines (including the Company, China Cargo
Airlines Co., Ltd. and China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu
Co., Ltd.) are subject to reduced custom duties and
value added tax on imported flight equipment and
overseas repair costs in relation to those aircraft
flying on international and regional routes with
effect from 1 January 2005. During the period from
1 January 2005 to 31 October 2006, the Group had
been continuing to pay duties and value added tax
at the standard rates and hence is entitled to a
refund for over payment in excess of the reduced
rates. From 1 November 2006 onwards, the Group
started to pay the custom and duties and value
added tax at the reduced rates. As at 31 December
2006, the Group’s related refundable amount of the
custom duties and value added tax amounted to

RMB88 million (2005: RMB125 million).

(b) As at 31 December 2006, the effective interest rate
on deposits with banks with original maturity over
three months but less than a year was 0.7% (2005:

0.7%).

24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s

23. AN » FRREMEBRK

n

(E

5

(@)

(b)

REFRL -_ETNFE+-_F =
TNBEEENTEF[2004)635
X HEAMZERQT (BEAA
Al FEEEMEBRARLH
BEAMETEHARAR]) B &
2 R AR AT B TR B O TR
TRBEAERINKIENEBR - #
“TEERF—A—HEREBR
RIEER B_EERE—A—
B2+ A=1+HH
M AEBERIEZERERINE
RARATE IR ET - L Z B BE
SN HRER c B ZTT N
F+—A—Hi#  AEEMHKIE
BK R BER ML BT R GMEERL
RIEER R _ETE+_-A
=+—8  AEEEKRERLIE
ERBRERNABAREISEHEE T
(ZZZRF : ARB125HS
JT) °

RZBEERNF+_A=+—80"
FEIEEBBE=(EAETBB—
FIRITFRRBRFE 50.7% (=
TERF :0.7%) °

24 RERBASEEY
AEBRAARRE KRR EEY

cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the HAREEEYIRAT
following currencies:
Group Company
£E N
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EERF —TTERE ZEERF —ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR AR®BTR
Renminbi AR 1,251,901 1,281,206 426,705 415,462
US Dollars XL 435,944 333,099 412,160 306,254
Japanese Yen S 68,950 76,591 54,871 55,803
Euro BT 66,454 37,420 61,029 28,163
Pounds Sterling Reg 17,416 22,979 17,416 22,979
Canadian Dollars mic 14,525 14,187 14,525 14,187
Singapore Dollars TN T 13,032 15,943 13,032 15,943
Australian Dollars BT 7,563 18,969 7,563 18,969
Others HAth 111,701 63,607 102,533 62,849
1,987,486 1,864,001 1,109,834 940,609
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25. TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE 25 B R R EMRE
The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable FERBR R K FERT R BR iR 0 T 20
is as follows: N
Group Company
58 N
2006 2005 2006 2005

ZEEAF “TTHF -BEAEF “TTRF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE ARMTR ARTE ARMTR

Less than 31 days PR=+—H 1,374,384 1,416,293 1,146,144 1,593,009
31 to 60 days =+—ZX~+H 577,883 397,187 493,877 364,480
61 to 90 days ANT—EZh+H 781,666 195,869 745,800 163,058
91 to 180 days N+—Z%
—B/A\+AH 2,030,629 846,775 1,980,677 605,039
181 to 365 days —BN+—%
ZBAA~THA 243,296 212,025 226,510 212,025
Over 365 days HB@A=-AThA 82,352 45,749 81,293 38,216
5,090,210 3,113,898 4,674,301 2,975,827
As at 31 December 2006, all notes payable totaling RZZEERF+ZA=+—8 " A
RMB3,471 million (2005: RMB1,775 million) were BRNEREFTARE3TIBET
unsecured. Discount rates ranged from 2.4% to 3.3% (ZZEZTRF : AR¥L775887T)
(2005: 2.9% to 3.2%) and all notes are repayable HEER - TIRER2.4%E3.3%
within six months. (ZZEZTRF 2.9%E3.2%) ' FI

BRNERESRANEARAS -

PERAMERGBAMRAT —F2RFFH 179




Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(B A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

26. HthEN R R FARE A

Group Company
58 NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEEXRE —TTRHFE ZBERE —TITHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%BTR ARKETR
Accrued fuel cost RRREREER 1,824,714 1,415,797 1,636,726 1,262,586
Duties and levies payable — JERT BRI R EM#iIE 1,227,450 755,373 1,045,405 707,060
Other accrued operating HRRAEMEEER
expenses 1,036,090 739,415 850,401 605,902
Accrued take-off and ERREEEER
landing charges 1,022,127 810,226 755,936 607,370
Accrued aircraft overhaul —~ FBIR K XEEH
expenses 834,075 745,627 697,149 587,400
Deposits received from HEERBHERE
ticketing agents WERHE] & 448,176 353,805 318,568 299,218
Accrued salaries, wages BRIE #F2
and benefits K 1@ 7 343,560 271,963 271,477 238,234
Staff welfare payable JERTE THRF 142,703 39,433 107,082 31,915
Staff housing fund payable EfNETFEHES
(Note 33(a)) (FEE33(a)) 123,277 136,510 123,277 136,510
Current portion of other HinRBAE
long-term liabilities CONTEIR: R
(Note 30) (FE#30) 62,000 66,029 62,000 66,029
Current portion of BARERNER
post-retirement benefit &) B 3B 10
obligations (Note 32(b)) (FEEE32(h)) 30,724 35,825 28,727 34,528
Current portion of R ERER
operating lease payables ) B 2R 10 - 52,268 - 52,268
Others Hity 891,455 573,480 786,291 503,858
7,986,351 5,995,751 6,683,039 5,132,878
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company
had 46 and 40 aircraft (2005: 36 and 33 aircraft)
respectively under finance leases. Under the terms of
the leases, the Group/the Company has the option to
purchase, at or near the end of the lease terms, certain
aircraft at fair market value and others at either fair
market value or a percentage of the respective lessors’
defined cost of the aircraft. The obligations under
finance leases are principally denominated in US
Dollars.

The future minimum lease payments (including

27.

MEESERE

R-PEAE+=—A=+—B &

— ==

KB RARFARERE 55
AR R (ZF
THEF : Z+ARM=1=R) -

RBFRE G -

AEBERAKRRA

RN E RSB EmET - AR
FhGEEIAEELHEAEEN
PXARRBEE PR LR - EME
BEXBEURTREME -

FEAE (BREMNE) MxEHEEM

interest), and the present value of the minimum lease BEDHWOT :
payments under finance leases are as follows:
Group
£B
2006 2005
“BERE ZEEnf
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments lease payments
payments Interest  BERE payments Interest ~ mERS
BEES HE ZRE  SEE: ME LHfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AR%Tn ARETr ARETR ARETT ARET:T
Within one year -ER 3,447,138 546,904 2,900,834 2,885,047 457,000 2,428,037
In the second year E-F 2,371,076 430,139 1,940,937 2,870,162 300,106 2,570,056
In the third to fifth F-EEELE
year inclusive (BEERME) 3,514,758 912,607 2,602,151 3,487,110 412,91 3,014,196
Ater the fifth year nENE 5,173,152 667,598 4,505,554 2,913,057 337,792 2,575,265
Total &% 14,506,724 2,557,248 11,949,476 12,155,376 1,567,822 10,587,554
Less: amount repayable B —ENEE
within one year H (3,348,020)  (544,064) (2,803,956)  (2,885,047)  (457,010)  (2,428,037)
amount reclassified EYNEE
to non-current assets FRHEE
held for sale (Note 37) B (83 (99,718) (2,840)  (96,878) - - -
Long-term portion REHH 11,058,986 2,010,346 9,048,642 9,270,329 1,110,812 8,159,517
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27. MEHEERE (BE)

(Cont’d)
Company
L
2006 2005
ZEERE g S
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease
lease payments lease payments
payments Interest  BERE payments Interest ~ mEHE
BEAE ME BB  RhHe ME L5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMTn AR%TR ARETR ARETT AR%Tx
Within one year —FR 3,195,142 459,367 2,135,775 2,779,448 417,474 2,361,974
In the second year FoF 2,146,228 351,312 1,794,916 2,764,563 263,806 2,500,757
In the third to fifth F-FEFDF
year inclusive (BEBEME) 2,903,681 722,981 2,180,700 3,170,314 384,958 2,785,356
After the fifth year RE% 4,033,038 497,281 3,535,757 2,347,521 270,326 2,077,195
Total g 12,278,089 2,030,941 10,247,148 11,061,846 1,336,564 9,725,282
Less: amount repayable B —ERER
within one year B (3,092,584)  (456,527) (2,636,057)  (2,779,448)  (417,474)  (2,361,974)
amount transferred E YN
to non-current assets FRBEE
held for sale (Note 37) B (837 (102,558) (2,840)  (99,718) - - -
Long-term portion REHMH 9,082,947 1,571,574 7,511,373 8,282,398 919,090 7,363,308
The fair value of obligations under finance leases of AEBRAQNTMEHERBZA

the Group and the Company are RMB11,550 million
and RMB9,833 million (2005: RMB10,432 million and
RMB9,690 million), which are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates prevailing at the year end of 2.5% to
7.0% (2005: 2.5% to 7.0%).

At 31 December 2006, the Group and the Company
had long-term bank deposits totaling RMB1,199 million
(2005: RMB2,026 million) pledged as collateral under
certain finance lease arrangements (Note 21(b)). In
addition, the finance lease obligations are guaranteed
by certain international and PRC banks in the PRC.

Certain leases that were entered into during the first
quarter of 2006 and initially classified as finance
leases, have been reassessed and reclassified as
operating leases since the announcement of the
unaudited 2006 interim results. The resulting impact
increased the Group’s consolidated net assets at 30
June 2006 by RMB113 million and decreased its
consolidated loss for the six-month period ended 30
June 2006 by the same amount. The consolidated
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
December 2006 are not affected.

REARASARKELL508E TR
)\Eﬁ% 833EE L (CTERF -
AR#10,4328 87T M AKRK9,690
BET) C MARAABEERIEES
SRRIR K R E B 5 K2.5%
Z27.0%:THEH (ZTZTRF 1 2.5%
%7.0%) °
RZZETF+_A=+—H" =K
Egﬁﬁﬁﬂuﬁﬁﬁ TTERETA
KH1198 8L CFZRF A
K2,026 A BT fERHET ﬁéﬁ"ﬂ
S (EEE21(b)) o kb -
SEMREHERER JFIE’
B IRITIRHIER ©

E—? 7/\&%_5?%1:#_ \ =
HER T NFEARLEEZNF
H 2 4 “i”\*ﬁﬁvaﬂﬁfﬁf L
fﬁ SRBH A DBALE R
ﬂﬁmEMAmA$%!ﬁ:
/\g/\ﬁf+aﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ\5¥ﬁ§
J:}I'T/\E'ﬂé}ll?:ﬁ%ﬂ:&@i;
/\E/\ﬂ +HIEANEALSE
E’J’TE'/UZ T*HHEE%E I EE o $A
HE-_TZF+-_A=1+—AH1t
ifﬂﬁi?éﬁﬁi‘%iﬁﬁﬂﬁé'éé
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28. BORROWINGS 28. EX
Group Company
58 N
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_ETHE ZEERE —ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR¥ETR ARETR
Non-current JEMEN BB
Long-term bank RERITER
borrowings (Note (a)) (sXE(a))
- secured — B 5,028,836 5,809,678 4,413,836 5,526,998
- unsecured — KR 7,062,577 3,980,438 6,428,079 3,930,438
12,091,413 9,790,116 10,841,915 9,457,436
Current e R
Long-term bank RHRITER
borrowings (Note (a)) (FFE(a))
- secured — B 773,494 1,555,313 773,494 1,516,173
- unsecured — fE K 2,067,200 1,313,917 1,476,740 1,313,917
Short-term bank WHERITE R
borrowings (Note (b)) (s (b))
- secured - BIEHE - 33,000 - -
- unsecured — KR 13,175,633 13,677,856 10,754,644 10,571,230
Debentures (Note (c)) &5 (G () - 1,974,544 - 1,974,544
16,016,327 18,554,630 13,004,878 15,375,864
Total borrowings (Note (d)) fEsX 48 %8 (FF#(d)) 28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
The borrowings are RITEFER TS
repayable as follows: HIFN{EE :
Within one year —FR 16,016,327 18,554,630 13,004,878 15,375,864
In the second year £ -F 3,053,315 2,663,434 2,953,315 2,631,154
In the third to fifth E-—FEERF
year inclusive (BIEEEMF) 7,560,389 5,517,473 7,020,891 5,217,073
After the fifth year HEUE 1,477,709 1,609,209 867,709 1,609,209
28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
Notes: R

(a) The fair value of long-term borrowings of the Group
and the Company are RMB15,397 million and
RMB13,546 million (2005: RMB12,044 million and
RMB11,696 million), which are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates prevailing at the year end of 4.5%

(2005: 4.5%).

N

(a) AEERARRRHRITERZ
ERRIAAREL5,3975E T
RARK13 54688 T (ZEZH
F o AREE12,04FETRARE
11,696 B &) * MERAEER
BEBASAHRERFREIEMS

FE4 5% T8N (ZTTRF
4.5%) °

FERARERAERAT —STAFER
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28. BORROWINGS (Cont’'d)

As at 31 December 2006, the secured bank borrowings
of the Group and the Company for the purchases of
aircraft were secured by the related aircraft with an
aggregate net book amount of RMB9,044 million and
RMB8,310 million respectively (2005: RMB9,074
million) (Note 15). Certain secured bank borrowings
with an aggregate net book amount of RMB186
million (2005: RMB837 million) were also guaranteed
by Export-Import Bank of the United States, China
Industrial and Commercial Bank and China
Construction Bank.

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group and
the Company totaling of RMB695 million and RMB100
million (2005: RMB1,282 million and RMB200 million)
were guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 41).

The terms of the long-term bank loans are
summarised as follows:

Interest rate and final maturities

NEREAIHA

28. B (#)

RZEERF+ZA=+—8"
REE AR AREERED
LIRS TR LA B A TR VB 4
m - HEEAEEAARK0144H
BTRARES 31068 (ZEZ
RE: ARE9, 0745 8T GHE
15) © AN - AR 186 BB (=
TTRF  ARKSITEEL) W
EIFRITERBEREL AR
77 PR TRERIT NP EERR
YRR -

ANE @ K AN BB MY FEIR IR ER 1T
BRI ARBe95H Btk AR
10EBT(ZETHF : ARE
128288 TR AR 2008 & T)
AR BERMEEER GEE4) ©

RERITEROGESBENT -

Group Company
&8 AH
2006 2005 2006 2005

“REAF _TTHF ZEERF -TTRF
RMB'000 RMB00O  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT AREBTR ARETI

RMB denominated bank loans:

DARBHENRTER

Loans for Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.18% to 5.76% 3,785,000 3,253,500 3,710,000 3,153,500
working per annum as at 31 December 2006; 1 to 4-year loans
capital with final maturity through to 2010.

BlEgEEe ZEEAET-AC+-HETHENTFE5.18EE5.768
e 1% FHR-ZNENERZ_Z-ZERRKIH

Loans for the Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.18% to 6.16% 1,777,500 1,455,000 767,500 1,455,000
purchases of per annum as at 31 December 2006; 2 to 11-year loans
aircraft* with final maturities through to 2017

BERERE —IEAFT-AZ+-HETHENTFE5.18EZ6.162
e % FHR-ET-FNERE_T-LFRRIS

Loans for Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.30% to 5.76% 245,000 200,000 100,000 200,000

construction

per annum as at 31 December 2006; 1 to 5-year loans

projects with final maturities through to 2011
BEEREE S RFT_AZT-BERNXAFE5NEZRSI6E
HER 1% SHA-ERENENE_Z——FREYH
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28. BORROWINGS (Cont’'d)

28. B (#)

Group Company
£H A
Interest rate and final maturities 2006 2005 2006 2005
AERBEISA ZEERE -ZTIF ZBERE _ZTIFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥T:
U.S. dollar denominated bank loans:
DETTENRTER
Loans for the Fixed interest rates ranging from 5.90% to 6.20% 1,008,982 296,120 546,609 296,120
purchases of per annum as at 31 December 2006; 2 to 3-year loans
aircraft with final maturities through to 2009
AERERE  —ZERET-AZ+-BEENENTESS90E
MER BB EHAEZFNENE_TENFRENY
Loans for the Floating interest rates ranging from 3 months LIBOR+0.25% 6,017,637 7,295,480 6,017,637 7,135,480
purchases of to 6 months LIBOR+0.75% as at 31 December 2006;
aircraft * 2 to 9-year loans with final maturities through to 2015
BEBERKE ST ET-A=+-BEHNER={EAHLIBOR0.25E
e ERERMUBR0.TSETS  FHE-ENENER
ECZ-RERANE
Loans for the Floating interest rates of 6 months LIBOR +0.6% 147,585 111,820 - -
purchase of as at 31 December 2006; 3 to 5-year loans with
an aircraft final maturities in 2011
simulator ZEERETZACT-REBNEAAEAN
AEREREE  LIBR.6E - FHAZZRENENE_E——£5KIH
e
Loans for Floating interest rates ranging from 3 months LIBOR+0.55% 866,287 - 866,287 -
working to 6 months LIBOR+0.75% as at 31 December 2006;
capital 2 to 3-year loans with final maturities through to 2009
FBEEEES ZETAETZAZT-BEBNER=EAHLIBOR0.55E
HE ERERMLBOR0.SETE  ERE-F=FEHNEHN
ECRRNFSRIS
Loans for Floating interest rates of 6 months LIBOR +0.75% 927,942 47,426 927,942 47,426
finance leases  as at 31 December 2006; 3-year loans with final
of aircraft maturity in 2009
BERERE ZEEAFT-A-T-HEBAXA~EAN
REMET  LUBOR0.75F - FHAZENERE_ZENEREIE
Loans for Floating interest rates of 6 months LIBOR +0.75% 156,174 - 156,174 -
construction as at 31 December 2006; 1-year loans with final
projects maturity in 2007
RIEEREE —EIAFT_A-T-ARBARA~EAN
e LIBOR+0.75E * FHA—FNENE _TTLF RIS
Total long-term bank loans 14,932,107 12,659,346 13,092,149 12,287,526
RERTENEE
* These loans are secured by the related * REFBARRERER
aircraft.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE_TEXNFT_A=+—HIFFE

28. BORROWINGS (Cont’'d)

28. EX

(&)

(b)  Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company (b) AEERARAMNEEIRITER
are repayable within one year with interest charged HER—FAEE - WA ./\
at the prevailing market rates based on the rates Efiﬁ/&ﬁﬁﬁ’]m%ﬂﬁ%% Bl
quoted by the People’s Bank of China. As at 31 EFE -MZZBEERF+-A=
December 2006, the interest rates relating to such +—B EEFOFENTF
borrowings ranged from 4.39% to 6.12% per annum B4.39EZ612E (ZETRF -
(2005: 2.22% to 5.04% per annum). During the year NTFEB2.22EE5.04F) - HZE
ended 31 December 2006, the weighted average RZBEERNF+ZA=+T—HI
interest rate on short-term bank loans was 5.60% FERNETIIHZE R E5.60/F
per annum (2005: 4.62% per annum). (ZZZTRF : FR4.62[F) o

(c)  On 5 August 2005, the Company issued debentures (c) R=ZZEZRFNHAR  ARHA
with a face value of RMB1,000,000,000 at an issue A971,600,000 7T A E &84T T H
price of RMB971,600,000, being 97.16% of the face TE?%)\E@%LOOO,OOO,OOO%‘JE}\J%
value, and repayable on 4 August 2006. On 23 August % (BN97.16% M A) @ WHR_ZTE
2005, the Company issued additional debentures with NENNAEBERE e li|:9|\ ' E/\\

a face value of RMB1,000 million at an issue price EERFNA=Z+=0 &R
of RMB980 million, being 98% of the face value, XDXQSOE%?E(EUQS%@TE)E@E
and repayable on 22 May 2006. During 2006, all BEITT SHNEERAAREL000
debentures were repaid at face value on the BEITWES  UTRZZTZRF
respective due dates. AAZH+ZHEH - RZZTEX
F-FBEESFHUAHELE
AT -
The zero coupon debentures are accounted for in AEERARNREEBBERMY
the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as TEEFHIITRAT :
follows:
2006 2005
—EERE —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Nominal value EE - 2,000,000
Less: Unamortised discount &l © 7%k $5 /99730 - (25,456)
- 1,974,544
(d)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are (d) EXHNEmMEEKREEN TN
denominated in the following currencies: N
Group Company
£8 YN
2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERFE ZTTRHE ZBEXRE CZIZTITRF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT AR¥TR ARETT
Renminbi AR 11,409,006 13,112,485 7,836,006 10,521,485
US Dollars E 16,698,734 15,232,261 16,010,787 14,311,815
28,107,740 28,344,746 23,846,793 24,833,300
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

29. PROVISION FOR AIRCRAFT OVERHAUL  29. R KIEEFEHE
EXPENSES
Group Company
58 |
2006 2005 2006 2005
“B2RRE _TTLHF ZBERE _—TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%®TR ARETR
At 1 January —H—B#&#& 403,999 254,009 348,835 200,725
Additions through business 3 7 I B 1 A1
acquisitions - 196,122 - 196,122
Additions through the B AU B B
acquisition of a NGB
controlling interest in T2 P o 2
an associate B 12 A
(Note 40(a)) (FE1840(a)) 23,994 - - -
Additional provisions AFFEIR 150,390 64,700 134,697 54,767
Reversal resulting from At EEE
change in estimate (Note) AYH[E (FE72) - (58,577) - (58,577)
Utilisation FEAXA (67,762) (52,255) (53,942) (44,202)
At 31 December tZRA=1T—H#&# 510,621 403,999 429,590 348,835
Less: current portion R OmE R (20,900) (15,589) (20,900) (15,589)
Long-term portion R EE R 489,721 388,410 408,690 333,246

Provision of aircraft overhaul expenses represents the
present value of estimated costs of major overhauls
for aircraft under operating leases as the Group has
the responsibility to fulfill certain return conditions
under relevant leases.

Note:

Prior to 2005, overhauls for certain aircraft models under
operating leases were performed by overseas service
providers. In 2005, the Company identified domestic
facilities to carry out overhauls for certain aircraft models
at lower cost. Accordingly, the Company changed its estimate
for provision for aircraft overhauls relating to those aircraft
models.

BN AEE R AL EERETR
HEVEET AIE B MROIRE - SRt
EREAKEEETmEEEHEE
HTE B SR IRAT ©

“ETRHFURT - AR EHERIFRAYAE
LR E R B BN M S R R T T
Kg - RZZEZRF » KARaFERE
R P HYBRER AT LA T2 5k S e AU SR M
K& - MRBIRNAXEEREBIINKIEE
BAR - At AR A EHRAIEER
HfHET ©
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30. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 30, HbREAEE
Group and Company
EER AT
2006 2005
—EBEANE _—TTHHE
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETTT

Long-term payable to the Bureau —ZT— T4 HigtHiEE

of 2010 Expo Shanghai REIEAR

(Note 14(b)) (FEF14(b)) 278,680 -
Long-term payable to RERABMERITER

Aviation China Civil REIEMN R (I (a)

Flight Institute (Note (a)) 90,000 120,000

Deferred credit on government B /F# AL IR B 18

grants (Note (b)) (FEE (b)) 70,410 70,410

Deferred gains on sale and & 1% [0] 78 R R & W 2

leaseback transactions
of aircraft 33,605 46,673
Other long-term payable H A R HA K 27,766 30,848
500,461 267,931

Less: Current portion (Note 26)  J&k : /i E) &b {0 (FEFE26) (62,000) (66,029)

Long-term portion R EIEB 19 438,461 201,902

Notes: oy

(a) The balance is unsecured, bearing interest at an (a) ZEHTLBER  BREME
effective rate of 6.21% per annum and is repayable 56.21 B WAEFESEIERA
by annual instalments of RMB30 million up to year EE30AETEE _ETNF -
2009.

(b) Deferred credit on government grants represents (b) BSHEMIEREERZIEBRITE T
government grants received for construction and AREEZNEELE RIRLEE
acquisition of safety and security facilities. As at HfmeL c HE -—ZEZE NF+ A
31 December 2006, the related facilities have not =+—8 HEEREEHKRBEE
been constructed or purchased. HEE -
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B2 —TENEFEfL A=+ —HIFE

31.

DEFERRED TAXATION

31.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right of offset
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance

IESETE
EHREERNA SRR EERRA
B REEE - MEEETS R
F—E8E®E AR SRETHMEHR
BERRCHESHAET LS -
EEEZEHHER TSR EEE

sheets: BERAYIR
Group Company
£8 NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_ETHE ZEERE —ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR¥ETR ARETRT
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E
- Deferred tax asset to — 1218 A A £7]
be utilised after BEIRMIRIT
12 months MIEEE 81,010 8,892 - -
- Deferred tax asset to — 1218 A LA R A]
be utilised within EIRMIRL
12 months HEEE 1,136 3,432 - -
82,146 12,324 - _
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE
- Deferred tax liability to ~ — 12 A A 7]
be realised after EIRMIRL
12 months mMBEE (68,459)  (144,302) - -
- Deferred tax liability to ~ — 1218 3 AR AJ
be realised within BEIRMIRT
12 months MEBE - (34,523) - (160,067)
(68,459)  (178,825) - (160,067)
Deferred tax assets/ EEHBEBEE,
(liabilities), net (BRfE) - ## 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

31 EERIR (35)

Movements in the net deferred taxation asset/ ELERIBFEE,/ (BE) WEEHN
(liability) are as follows: N
Group Company
58 AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z2ERF —TTHHF ZBERE _—ITTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 1 January —A—B#& (166,501)  (292,385)  (160,067)  (278,942)
Additions through business 3 7 U B 3% hn
acquisitions (Note 40(a))  (FE£40(a)) (29,326) 93,017 (29,326) 93,017
Credited to income Ba&kEE
statement (Note 11) (FFE11) 211,004 56,970 190,883 49,961
Charged/(credited) to equity # = f§8  (BIH)
- gain/(losses) on - RERMNE2
cashflow hedges 2 E H
(Note 36) wm A (K
(FE#36) (1,490) (24,103) (1,490) (24,103)
At 31 December +ZA=+—H#&#&% 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction)
were made up of the taxation effects of the following:

31 EERIR (35)

NR-BERFE+-A=+—8 &
ERMIBEEE KB EER —TAKE
TR SR B A THHRBEEE

#RK
Group Company
£8 NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_TTRHE ZEERE —ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETR
Deferred tax assets: EEFIBEE
Tax losses carried forward %1 75 5 18 45 62 972,778 451,659 667,648 414,529
Provision for obsolete REZESHR
flight equipment PREEE
spare parts 68,574 33,192 66,008 32,748
Provision for receivables JE W OB B 2 57,467 12,474 28,092 12,213
Provision for RINE R ERE
post-retirement benefits 216,570 185,102 176,007 168,842
Other accrued expenses HERS H R
and provisions Pic 97,823 48,412 67,191 34,682
1,413,212 730,839 1,004,946 663,014
Less: unrecognised assets )il : RIEREE (882,443)  (338,194)  (594,326)  (301,064)
530,769 392,645 410,620 361,950
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEAE
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation (517,082) (559,146)  (410,620) (522,017)
(517,082)  (559,146)  (410,620) (522,017
Net deferred tax assets/ ERBRIBEE,/ 13,687 (166,501) - (160,067)
(liabilities) (BfE)#%
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

31.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

Movements of the net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

of the Group for the year:

31.

EEBE ()
AEBRE-TEAET-A=T
—AILFEEEHEEE, /(B
FEOEHERMT

Additions
through
(Charged)/ business
credited  (Charged)/  acquisitions
At the to income credited (Note 40) At the
beginning of  statement to equity £% end of
the year BEX BHfEE B8 the year
EN® (&8 /8% (%) /8% (& 840) EXY
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETRT ARET:R
For the year ended BE-Z2ZRE
31 December 2006 tZA=1-H
Tax losses carried forward ~ HEFEEH 113,465 (23,130) - - 90,335
Provision for obsolete flight REREZHH
equipment spare parts REERE 33,192 35,382 - - 68,574
Provision for receivables ERRAEER 12,474 44,993 - - 57,467
Provision for post-retirement Bk % B F %4
benefits 185,102 31,468 - - 216,570
Other accrued expenses and HABRXHEK
provisions Ef 48,412 50,901 (1,490) - 97,823
392,645 139,614 (1,490) - 530,769
Depreciation and amortisation 17 % & # 85 (559,146) 71,390 - (29,326) (517,082)
(559,146) 71,390 - (29326)  (517,082)
Net deferred tax assets/ BEEREEE/
(liabilities) (BF) B8 (166,501) 211,004 (1,490) (29,326) 13,687

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements

IS HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 31. BN E (&)
Additions
through
(Charged)/ business
credited (Charged)/  acquisitions
At the to income credited (Note 40) At the
beginning of statement to equity £% end of
the year BaX BnfEE W Em the year
ENg (§8)/EE (BE) /88 (FE40) FRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREBTR ARETR ARET:
For the year ended BHE-Z2%1F
31 December 2005 +-A=1+-H
Tax losses carried forward REBREH 97,442 16,023 - - 113,465
Provision for obsolete flight ~ TRILRET )
equipment spare parts REEE 54,014 (20,628) - (194) 33,192
Provision for receivables YR EER 10,146 2,328 - - 12,474
Provision for post-retirement R K& @ FIEE
benefits 95,252 12,066 - 71,784 185,102
Other accrued expenses and ~ Ef BRI R
provisions B 123,469 (16,647) (24,103) (34,307) 48,412
380,323 (6,858) (24,103) 43,283 392,645
Depreciation and amortisation 47 & J # (672,708) 63,828 - 49,734 (559,146)
(672,708) 63,828 - 49,734 (559,146)
Net deferred tax liabilities ~ EREHBEEFH (292,385) 56,970 (24,103) 93,017 (166,501)

In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for a period of five years. As at 31 December 2006,
the Group and the Company had tax losses carried
forward of approximately RMB5,782 million and
RMB4,451 million respectively (2005: RMB3,011 million
and RMB2,764 million respectively) which will expire
between 2007 and 2011, and which are available to
set off against the Group and the Company’s future
taxable income. As at 31 December 2006, the Group
and the Company did not recognise RMB882 million
and RMB594 million respectively (2005: RMB338
million and RMB301 million respectively) of deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses available as
management did not consider it probable that such
tax losses would be realised before they expire.

RIBRBEF A - BEEIERRAF
NI A RERHKA - RZFE
NFE+TZA=1+—8 ' AEEKEK
NAMTR S EBESR D RIH AR
5,782 B S TN ARY4,451BE T
(ZZETRHF : ARK3,011BETT
MAREE2,7648&T) AR -F
THHEE T ——FRHRRHEA
EERARNBRRKEFTUA o
HE_TEF+_HA=+—H
1IF BRAAEIEEHEEHEBENT
T E 1R E B B BART AT 4 F A A9 A B
M D REB KRR M AER
RIEIERIBEE E D Rl A AR 882
BB TMARESSHE T (CZEE
RE ARE3ISHEETRARE
301 &7T) °

E
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes
(i)  Pension

The Group companies participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by municipal governments of
the various provinces in which the Group
companies operate, and substantially all
of the Group’s PRC employees are eligible
to participate in the Group companies’
retirement schemes. The Group companies
are required to make annual
contributions to the schemes at rates
ranging from 20% to 22% on the
employees’ prior year salary and
allowances. Employees are required to
contribute to the schemes at rates
ranging from 7% to 8% of their basic
salaries. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions
under these schemes. For the year ended
31 December 2006, the Group’s pension
cost charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to RMB238 million
(2005: RMB228 million).

(ii)  Medical insurance

The majority of the Group’s PRC
employees participate in the medical
insurance schemes organised by the
municipal governments, under which the
Group and its employees are required to
contribute to the scheme approximately
12% and 2%, respectively, of the
employee’s basic salaries. For those
employees who participate in these
schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical
expense beyond the annual
contributions. For the year ended 31
December 2006, the Group’s medical
insurance contributions charged to the
income statement amounted to RMB60
million (2005: RMB52 million).

32. RSB REESRAKEMN

=A

(a) EFEMFRAKEFE

(i)

(ii)

BIkE

AEB2EFELHTIR
FTE B8R M) T R R AR IR
©FTEl o AEBAZHF
BREMAE2EAEEN
RIRGETEIZER - A&
BEREI—FEH e E
Bh & EEAI20% 2 22% 32 49
HIEE - BERIREER
FHERT% 8% XA
Koo B BB E B K
N AREEEEMERNST
FRRENNEE - BE
—EERFt+A=1—
BIEFE » AEBEZAT
ETEFAGEBRERD
RReHRERAARE
238FE L (ZETRF -
ARB228AETT) ©

REBRKBLOFRHEESR
T ZEDETIRATALE
MEERBTE - AEE
MEE AN RIREARF ¢
#912% K 2% @ st 2L 3L
BRI - REBEH 2
INETEIA R B W H At B8
BEASE -HE_ZTZT
NET-_A=+—HIHF
B AEEFARK60H
BLT(ZZZRF: AR
k52 B E ) BERER M
RN EZERPFER -
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(b)

Post-retirement benefits

In addition to the above retirement schemes,
the Group provides retirees with other post-
retirement benefits including transportation
subsidies, social function activities subsidies
and others. The expected cost of providing these
post-retirement benefits is actuarially
determined and recognised by using the
projected unit credit method, which involves a
number of assumptions and estimates, including
inflation rate, discount rate and employees’
turnover ratio.

The post-retirement benefit obligations
recognised in the balance sheets are as follows:

32. RS EIREERAKEMN

&A ()
(b) BERAKENEF

B Bt RIS EHEISN - A%
B fURINME BB B AR
AL A RURBER A N EAD
BA o B BERNEENATEL
BB IR [TRET 18 M IR IR 15
Hig L BEMAESE - X
NEIERR LA REE B
PEMBRE  IREXLEER

o

EEERRKTERNE
BRRENERERDT

A

Group Company
&8 AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_TITHF ZBERE —_TITILF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI ARETT AR%®TR ARETRT
Present value of ITREEHWES
unfunded RINERT
post-retirement EREBN
benefit obligations HRE 1,892,926 1,970,292 1,650,889 1,792,522
Unrecognised AEROEE
actuarial losses Bx (569,242)  (731,590)  (477,509)  (672,357)
Post-retirement BB RIKERRF
benefit obligations ER%EE 1,323,684 1,238,702 1,173,380 1,120,165
Less: current portion  J&, ¢ FRENE(D
(Note 26) (FE¥26) (30,724) (35,825) (28,727) (34,528)
Long-term portion FEE 1,292,960 1,202,877 1,144,653 1,085,637
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-  32. BR&itBIRESRKEMN

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d) BEF (&)

(b) Post-retirement benefits (Cont'd) (b) EERKENEF ()
Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations EBRNERAERAERENAK
are as follows: FENEHWT

Group Company
£8 DF
2006 2005 2006 2005
SREAE -TTRSF -REAE —TEIA

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
At 1 January —RA—HB&# 1,238,702 645,732 1,120,165 539,945
Additions through EBUEEE N
business acquisition - 519,881 - 519,881
Total expenses charged FFALZREEREH
in the income EHER
statement 146,968 102,459 114,422 89,467
Payments AEEX (61,986) (29,370) (61,207) (27,778)
Others H Al - - - (1,350)
At 31 December +-A=+—H
rE R 1,323,684 1,238,702 1,173,380 1,120,165

The costs of post-retirement benefits are
recognised under wages, salaries and benefits
in the income statement as follows:

Group
e
2006
—EBRE —ZT

REEHEREBEAIEREY
ATE - FekEHNERF
WERRFEGFEEERRPR
i -

Company
NG
2005 2006 2005
A —BEXE —TTHF

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARBTT AR®TR AR®TR

Current service cost ENREER 63,957 56,436 51,964 50,775

Interest cost BEMNMEER 72,435 45,200 54,175 38,009
Actuarial losses BRNBEERRX

recognised 10,576 823 8,283 683

Total (Note 8) e (s Es) 146,968 102,459 114,422 89,467
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-  32. B &t EIRESRKEN
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Cont’d) BEF (&)
The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance REEREXRATIEBEEHERRK

sheet date are as follows:

LU

Group and Company

EERAT
2006 2005
“BREAF —ZELF
Discount rate | = 3.75% 3.5%
Annual rate of increase of > 11 & B & | #Y
per capita benefit payment BEHEEE 1.5% 1.5%
Employee turnover rate EEMKE 3.0% 3.0%

33. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS
(a) Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform
regulations, the Group is required to contribute
to the State-sponsored housing fund at rates
ranging from 1% to 15% (2005: 1% to 15%) of
the specified salary amount of its PRC
employees. At the same time, the employees
are required to contribute an amount equal to
the Group’s contribution. The employees are
entitled to claim the entire sum of the fund
contributed under certain specified withdrawal
circumstances. For the year ended 31 December
2006, the Group’s contributions to the housing
funds amounted to RMB228 million (2005:
RMB195 million) which has been charged to
the income statement. The staff housing fund
payable as at 31 December 2006 amounted to
RMB123 million (2005: RMB137 million) (Note
26). The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

B BIEEmE
(a) BEIXEES

RIBERTENFBEERER
K%IE&HWEI%iMM
E15% (ZTZEAF 1% E
15%) R EBRLZHNEREE
& o R BTIVENRES
&f - BARFHERFENHE
Ko E%$ﬁiﬁ%élﬁ%
RREEMER - RZTTRF
+-_A=+—BIEFER K
SEFFABERNBRIEREE
SHHFGTARK2285E T
(ZZZRTF : ARE19568
7'IZ> @i;gg/\i‘f— H
_+ B AEERTEEHE
SEEFEHRBEAARKI123EE
T (ZEZTRF : AR¥1378
s7t) HE26) - EEEHE
ENRUEZ e BRI IRE R
& H N AT HAR s A - R B
EAEMSRETEMNEELRE
R °
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33. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS (Cont’d)

(b) Staff housing allowances

The Company also provides staff housing
allowances to eligible employees who joined
the Group prior to 1998 according to the Group’s
staff housing allowance policy introduced in
October 2003 (the “Staff Housing Allowance

Policy”).

Under the Staff Housing Allowance Policy,
employees who have not been allocated with
any housing quarters or who have not been
allocated with a quarter above the minimum
area as set out in the Staff Housing Allowance
Policy, are entitled to a cash allowance based
on the area of quarter to which they are entitled
and the unit price as set out in the Staff
Housing Allowance Policy. The total entitlement
is principally vested over a period of 20 years.
Upon an employee’s resignation, his or her
entitlement will cease and any unpaid
entitlement related to past service up to the
date of resignation will be paid. Upon the
establishment of the Staff Housing Allowance
Policy, employees are entitled to a portion of
the total entitlement already accrued based on
his or her past service period. Such entitlement
is paid over a period of 4 to 5 years. As at 31
December 2006, the present obligation of the
provision for employee’s staff housing
entitlement is RMB439 million (2005: RMB457

million).

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the staff
housing benefit provided under the Staff
Housing Allowance Policy amounted to RMB31
million (2005: RMB36 million) which has been

charged to the income statement.

33. W TFEwAL (&)
(b) ETXEE#E

RIE-TT=F+ ABEMNE
TEFHMBR((BIEEHE
MBER]) - ARBR—NAAN
FRIAR BT A BRAFHIEL
TRMESMHEE -

FERZBURT - AR MHERE
PEREFEHEESERESFER
EIZEMNE T NGRS
Ak o B THMAL B REAZIBUR
FEIFEXEEEBENMERE
BEME - XHHRAN LA
—+F - BB TR - B
B E IEETE - (ERIAGEEE
BRI AL A H B
Bt - EZEITEREBERA
s BTHRBETREEZA
e erEmet - WRNER
FBW - —TEXRFFALZE
EEABBERNWEBRIRRENE
TEERMAARKELI0EE
TT(ZETRF  AR®4578
&) °

BT F+-_A=1+—
HILFE  EEIEFEHBCR
TEHENEIEE@MBEAAR
BI1BEET(ZZEZTRE : 36
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34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. TRITET A
Group and Company
EERAF
Assets Liabilities
iE &
2006 2005 2006 2005
—BRAE "TTHF -—BEAF _TTHA
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 31 December +tZA=1+—B&%
Interest rate swaps FEF#®
(Note (a)) (FFE(a)) 118,689 71,260 36,392 19,821
Forward foreign exchange  SMNEEHIA 4
contracts (Note (b)) (FEE (b)) 8,290 2,469 4,962 17,808
Fuel option contracts WA m B & 4
(Note (c)) (FEE(c) 59,822 50,193 97,464 22,985
Total R 186,801 123,922 138,818 60,614
Less: non-current portion  J& : RHEIED
Interest rate swaps N &5 (73,269) (70,292) (14,096) (2,731)
Forward foreign exchange  SMNEEHIA 4
contracts - (594) - (10,380)
Fuel option contracts R m B A 4 - - - (12,659)
(73,269) (70,886) (14,096) (25,770)
Current portion mEE 113,532 53,036 124,722 34,844
Notes: =
(a)  Interest rate swaps (a) RMEE#HE
The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the AEEFBFNEREBLBET IS
risk of changes in market interest rates (Note ¥5)§§bmﬂA(§f*$3(a)(iii)) o 7R
3(a)(iii)). The interest rate swaps entered into by B Z TR R B2 S B LIBOR
the Group are generally for swapping variable rates, *HF@E’J/%@?‘JTL%E%.E?U
usually referenced to LIBOR, into fixed rates. The i?’\ cRENEEHMBEEANE
Group’s interest rate swaps qualify for hedge grHRA - Ibkfﬁ/i\m’féﬁﬁﬁ
accounting and are accounted for as cashflow hedges. J}iﬁ RZEZRF+ZH=T
As at 31 December 2006, the notional amount of AR AR R S T E
the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was Em%%‘f%ﬁiﬁﬁ631§§%ﬁ
approximately US$631 million (2005: US$661 (ZZZTRF 1 6618 BETT)
million). These agreements will expire between 2007 BRZZBELFE f*/\EFEJ
and 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2006, a Hm o REBEZZZTRF+H
net gain of RMB4 million (2005: RMB79 million) =T—HIEFE £BEARKE4T
arising from changes in the fair value of the interest ELHERFUERERRER
rate swaps subsequent to initial recognition has been BR(CEZTRF : ARKETIEE
recognised directly in the hedging reserve (Note 36). 70) (FX¥E36) °
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34.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont’d)

Notes:

(b)

(c)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses currency forward contracts to reduce
risk of changes in currency exchange rates in respect
of ticket sales and expenses denominated in foreign
currencies (Note 3(a)(vi)).
generally for selling Japanese Yen and purchasing

These contracts are

U.S. dollars at fixed exchange rates. As at 31
December 2006,
outstanding currency forward contracts was
approximately US$33 million (2005: US$92 million),
which will expire between 2006 and 2010. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, a net gain of RMB6
million (2005: a net loss of RMB82 million) arising
from changes in the fair value of these foreign

the notional amount of the

currency forwards has been recognised directly in
the hedging reserve (Note 36).

Fuel option contracts

The Group uses fuel option contracts to reduce the
risk of changes in market oil/petroleum prices in
As at 31
December 2006, the Group had outstanding fuel
option contracts to buy approximately 10,690,000
barrels of crude oil at prices which ranged from
US$54.75 to US$95 per barrel and to sell
approximately 23,310,000 barrels of crude oil at
prices which ranged from US$40 to US$115 per barrel,
all of which will expire between 2007 and 2009.
Management did not designate these fuel option

connection with aircraft fuel costs.

contracts for hedge accounting and changes in fair
values have been recognised directly in the income
statement.

34.

SRIPTET A (@

(b)

(c)

o
=== .
L p¥F

HNEEHEH
REEUINEEIE HREBER
SNBSS B IR SHE I B A i B
FFE R R GERE3(a)(vi)) ° JMNE
EfFZALETEREEAT
WEAETL _TETF+_-A
=t+—B  NBEHFEEEEAR S
EEANONARESENA3ZE
BET(CTTRAF2HEE
T WER T RNEE T —
TERMER - RZEERF+ =
A=+—HIEFE  AREMNK
BHEEARKEELHESFK
EREHRENER(ZZTR
F:ARES2HELFEX) GE
236) o

MBEESH

A& ERBIH B S AR EE
T35 WA (B 46 U5 B 7 70 FRAK K
AR RARAR - BHEZZTZT
NE+ZA=1+—8 " REAE
BEHARZWEBRESYD  AEE
= A @54.75F L RIS ETLHIE
BB E MM #910,690,000%8 » 1A
40 TTE1E T EREE
#AH#923,310,000%% ° thE A 475
RZEELFR_FTNFHEHE
e AEERIUREIES O E
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35.

SHARE CAPITAL 35. R
2006 2005
ZBEAF _—TELF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥BTT ARETT
Registered, issued and fully paid s + B %77 K2 &AL
of RMB1.00 each BRAR®1.007T
Unlisted shares held by CEA FEEMEBRREET
Holding and employees BE®IERAR 3,000,000 3,000,000
A shares listed on The Shanghai & E/8FZF A5 ST
Stock Exchange A ARR 300,000 300,000
H shares listed on The Stock EEBELERSH
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited T AIHA 1,566,950 1,566,950
4,866,950 4,866,950

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, each of the unlisted shares,
the listed A shares and the listed H shares are all
registered ordinary shares and carry equal rights.

On 18 December 2006, the Company convened the
Relevant Shareholder’s Meeting of A Share Shareholders
in which the Company’s share reform plan was
approved. Details please refer to Post Balance Sheet
Event (Note 44).

BEARBINARERELN K
A& - FRRIERBAL - ABAKH
e AWML BRI =6 RS#
o

AKABRZZEZERNF+=-A+/\H
Eﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁﬂx% EE&EAHXFD%*HE%

BREFEZBE T AARRED
BENENSR  FREERRER

(RE¥R44) -
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RESERVES 36. &
Group
&8
Retained
Statutory and profits/
discretionary (accumulated
Share  reserves Revaluation (apital  Hedging losses)
premium  EER  reserve  reseve  reseve REER/ Total
RAEE £E0RE EftRGE E4RE EHRE (RHER) At
(Note (a)) (Note (b))~ (Note 34)
(F& () (HED)  (FE34)
RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARBTR ARETH ARETR ARETI ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2005 CETRE-F-AER 1006455 3LUL 40688 (120057  (91861) 590,778 1,657,174
Unrealised gains on cashflow ReERNAER
hedges (Note 34) Wi (834
- gross -E - - - - 181,449 - 181,449
- tax -HA - - - - () - ()
Realised gains on cashflow ReERMEER
hedges (Note 34) Wi (E834)
- gross -E - - - - (20,7%9) - (20,7%9)
- tax -HA - - - - 3114 - 3,114
Dividend relating to 2004 “ETMEERE - - - - - (97,339)  (97,339)
Loss attributable to equity holders AAFEZZEA
of the Company EhER - - - - - (467,307) (467,307
Transfer from retained profits to ~ (EREEFIBE
reserves (Note (a)) 1162 -10)) - 26,67 - - - (26,671) -
At 31 December 2005 ZEERETCA
ST-RER 1,006,455 407,842 490,688  (720,057) 44,726 (539) 1,229,115
A 1 January 2006 SETAE-R-BEB 1000455 0786 490688  (120057) 46726 (539) 1,229,115
Unrealised gains on cashflow ~ BEEHHAER
hedges (Note 34) i (ER34)
- gross -85 - - - - 1,774 - 1,774
- tax -HE - - - - (1,91) - (1,91)
Realised gains on cashflow REEHNCER
hedges (Note 34) i (ER34)
- gross -8% - - - - (288) - (288)
- tax -#AE - - - - 426 - 426
Revaluation reserve, net of tax, EHRBEHELT
arising from acquisition of a BHERRDE
controlling interest in MEMRE
an associate k%8 - - 23816 - - - 23816
Loss attributable to equity holders KA FEHEEEA
of the Company EiEER - - - - - (3,313,425) (3,313,425)
Transfer from retained profits o #RERAEE
reserves (Note (2)) REERQ) - 20,966 - - - (20,966) -
At 31 December 2006 ZRRRETIAR
St-pkg 1,006,455 428,808 514506  (120,057) 53,167 (3,334930) (2,052,053)
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RESERVES (Cont'd)

36. fi f (&)

Company
27
Retained
Statutory and profits/
discretionary (accumulated
Share  reserves Revaluation (apital  Hedging losses)
premium  EER  Reserve  reseve  reseve REER/ Total
Rxigf g8iRe EFfRE E4RR ZHEE (RHER) At
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note 34)
(F& () (&M (FEW
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2005 ZEERE-R-H
a8 gE3 1,006,455 182,336 435,077 (720,057)  (91,861) 232,917 1,044,867
Unrealised gains on cashflow ReERNAER
hedges (Note 34) g (E34)
- gross -g - - - - 181,449 - 181,449
- tax -HB - - - - (a2) - (a0)
Realised gains on cashflow ReEHMMEER
hedges (Note 34) Wi (B
- gross -E - - - - (20,759 - (20,7%9)
- tax -HA - - - - 3,114 - 3114
Dividend relating to 2004 “ZEMEERE - - - - - (07,339)  (97,339)
Loss for the year EEnER - - - - - (406,362)  (406,362)
At 31 December 2005 ZEERETCA
ST-RER 1,006,455 182,336 435,077 (720,057) 44,726 (270,784) 677,753
At 1 January 2006 “8ERE-f-H
geh o B8 1,006,455 182,336 435,077  (720,057) 44,726  (270,784) 677,753
Unrealised gains on cashflow ~ HEEHHAER
hedges (Note 34) Wi (2834
- gross -8% - - - - 12,714 - 12,714
- tax -HE - - - - (1,916) - (1,9%)
Realised gains on cashflow REEHNCER
hedges (Note 34) i (ER34)
- gross -#% - - - - (2883) - (2883)
- tax -HE - - - - 426 - 426
Loss for the year EENER - - - - - (2,663,713) (2,663,713)
At 31 December 2006 ZRRRETIA
St-Rks 1,006,455 182,336 435,077  (720,057) 53,167 (2,034,497) (1,977,519)
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36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a) Statutory and Discretionary Reserves

36. fi f (&)

(a) EERERQAES

Group Company
55 |
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEEXRE ZTTHE ZEBERE C—ILTT0HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥TR ARETT
Statutory common EERNES
reserve fund 400,819 196,746 154,428 77,214
Statutory common N
welfare fund - 183,107 - 77,214
Discretionary common TEATES
reserve fund 27,989 27,989 27,908 27,908
428,808 407,842 182,336 182,336

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Group
companies’ Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit
for the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years’ losses, if any, and to issue new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings or to increase the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Group
companies’ Articles of Association, each of the
companies was required to transfer 5% to 10% of its
profit for the year, as determined under the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory common
welfare fund. This fund can only be used to provide
staff welfare facilities and other collective benefits
to the Group companies’ employees. This fund is
non-distributable other than on liquidation. From 1
January 2006 onward, the Group companies are
prohibited from providing further appropriations out
of their profit for the year to the statutory common
welfare fund pursuant to the revised Company Law.
The balance of the statutory common welfare fund
as at 1 January 2006 was converted into the statutory
common reserve fund.

RIBEF BB BEHRTEMERRHA
RIER  ARRABEZTEE
AEBIFTEHE A AR A 10%88
AEZEATES  HEZL ESLE
ISR M E A HI50% < SEERD
B ARBENAIFEEBE -
INAMEIA B IR L B 31T R T
R BR 2k 38 AN AR SR IR B BT I AR 0
H{E  BEEBENEHRTITLOR
AR AN 25% o

BRI E R A BEE KRR RN
NAERE  ARRBBEPEHE
ETERIFTETEMFEE AFERI5%
Z10%BAETEAES - BBEAE
S AAARARA TR T ERE
PRk E B AR E B TH
EREEF - EEAESRIBEIN
TBRHIK - BIBELIEFTHA A
% BRZTEERF—A—BR
EE QBT ESENFEESRBR
EEFRmE - RZEETF—
B—BEFEARSHERDESR
EREAES -
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36.

RESERVES (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Statutory and Discretionary Reserves (Cont’d)
Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer
5% of its profit for the year as determined under
the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a discretionary
common reserve fund. The transfer to this reserve is
subject to approval at shareholders” meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, the Company recorded
a loss for the year. Accordingly, no profit
appropriation by the Company to the discretionary
common reserve fund has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2006 (2005: nil). The transfer
from retained profits to reserves for the year
represents the profit appropriation to reserves of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the fair value of the net assets injected and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
in respect of a group restructuring in June 1996.

36. fi f (&)

T (8

(a)

(b)

EEREELRS @)
AAFA b B R AR B
t0 25 FE O 59 8 A FE 5 AT
$ - HEBHBEREA AN
i -

AABIRBE_ZEZTF+-A
=+ —BHLEFEEPEGTEA
BEFEANEIE - UL ARRR
HEZZTF+-A=+—H
I FEEBERTHEANER(CET
RE ) o AEERRE B
EREBARNRRNB AR
pa v

- E:NC
AEER—NANANFANAETAER
MBETERNREABLFEEAR
EHERSENHRE -
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37. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 27 December 2006, the Board of Directors passed
a resolution to dispose certain aged aircraft and
related flight equipment in the forthcoming 12-months
in consideration of the poor market reception and the
high maintenance cost of these aircraft. Subsequent
to the pass of the resolution, the Company has taken
active programme to locate potential buyers no
agreement has been reached as of the date of this
report. These aircraft together with the related flight
equipment and spare parts with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB882 million has been classified as non-
current asset held for sale as at 31 December 2006.
Prior to the reclassification, a valuation deficit of
RMB1,035 million for these assets was recognised in
the income statement as a result of the asset
revaluation (Note 15). The liabilities directly
associated with these assets held for sale amounted
to RMB443 million as at 31 December 2006, comprising
finance lease obligation of RMB97 million with interest
rates of 6.24% and final maturities through to 2007
and bank loans of RMB346 million with interest rates
ranging from 5.79% to 6.32% and final maturities
through to 2008. The bank loans are secured by the
related aircraft at net carrying amount of RMB586
million.

GEFRBEE

75/\\_7 ERF+_A=-++H8" ZJX
NAEEEH R MG AR
ERENEZET 1i&,ﬁ{|§ﬁ$f
= MEBE AR 1218 AR B HEER
X FE AR TR MM B RS - B8
BZORZERE - AREEBRETSE
SRAEEMER « BEARRER -
WA EBEEENTMHZE - %
LR K B MM MR aERE
EAARKE2ABTEEN -
TRE+_A=+—HBEASE
3E/}|u@]§? EE igﬁl *Hfﬁéf
2 G M E AR EREEB LA
E%lmsé‘%ﬁﬂ%@%ﬁéi‘%}iﬁ%
(GXF15) - RZZEEXRF+-A=
+—H - BSEFRBEEEEM
BB EAEARELH4IGET &
FEEREHEEBARKIEE
TC (H AR A6.24% @ ZEFIHE A
—TTHF)NEE }\Eﬁ%%ﬁé‘%

TT (B F R 55.79%%6.32% * £ 14
FHBEA-ZTTNF) - HWERTT

EREHEEREEER - RIKER
EWEEAE%%E%‘T’E °
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38. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

38. £ BELEMNREME

STATEMENT
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) RETHEENRERE
2006 2005
ZBREAF —ZTELF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%Tr
Loss before income tax FE(EF8) (3,615,697) (577,432)
Adjustments for: AFIER -
Depreciation of property, M - s R
plant and equipment REITE 4,566,309 3,911,722
Gains on disposals of property, EH i #s - #2E K
plant and equipment Brgicl=ofank=pigl (36,207) (8,073)
Share of results of associates B 5 N A& (103,566) 9,030
Share of results of jointly B h RS E S
controlled entities E (29,595) 4,300
Amortisation of lease SEERREN-E
prepayments 55 30,869 25,219
Net foreign exchange gains PE 5 5 & A (888,402) (414,640)
Amortisation of deferred iR A Wy 2 B
revenue (13,068) -
Fair value gains on financial MBEERN
assets at fair value through NRAE
profit or loss W & (17,784) (30,877)
Consumption of flight R BEZMH
equipment spare parts 2 B FE 326,248 239,134
(Reversal of allowance)/ R R BT
allowance for obsolescence BE RS
of flight equipment spare (#&mE)
parts FT 1R 31,734 (13,930)
Provision for impairment of & W BR FURVE
trade and other receivables A AF 98,156 25,325
Provision for post-retirement iR /K1Z & F
benefits R 146,968 102,459
Provision for staff housing EEFEEmAL
allowance AEF 30,656 36,231
Provision for aircraft overhaul TR K& &
expenses HE 150,390 64,700
Revaluation deficit RRENRE 1,035,343 -
Interest income B KA (120,161) (128,700)
Interest expenses FMEBER 1,821,870 1,100,357
Operating profit before HEBEAREEHN
working capital changes F 85 F 3,414,063 4,344,825
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38. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont’d)

(a) Cash generated from operations (Cont’d)

38. EEEL MR EME ()

(a) REFZHELENHRESRE

(48)
2006 2005
ZBEAF _—TELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREFTT
Changes in working capital EEEDHE
Flight equipment spare parts R BEZTMH (583,027) (294,969)
Trade receivables JiE Ut BR 3K 14,273 (112,027)
Amount due from related JE U B 8 B A R
companies A (147,007) (83,459)
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEfTE - FHR &
other receivables E b JiE Y R (538,347) (306,283)
Sales in advance of carriage  TE & # A1 68,510 101,490
Trade payables and notes JE A-F BR 3R K FE A
payables e/ (182,383) 821,222
Amounts due to related &1~ B BB A )
companies A 125,327 156,062
Other payables and accrued — E {th J& {1 3 &
expenses JBIRE A 1,515,138 (1,030,806)
Other long-term liabilities HtwRHER 23,627 (67,764)
Provision for aircraft overhaul TR A& & A
expenses A (67,762) (110,832)
Post-retirement benefit PEEYNCE
obligations & A (61,986) (29,370)
Staff housing allowances Bt T (X = %8k (35,361) (18,306)
Operating lease deposits LEMHET (86,555) -
44,447 (975,042)
Cash generated from operations “:EEAL MRS 3,458,510 3,369,783
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)

(b) Non-cash transactions

38.

38. EEEL MR EME ()

(b) FREXH

2006 2005
—EERE —ZTTNOHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®T
Investing activities not KREETHHIERS
affecting cash: R -
Sale and leaseback R E 12
of aircrraft [ # 7,940,164 -
Financing activities not MEEZBNIERE
affecting cash: B
Finance lease obligations HEERMEED
incurred for acquisition of mEMRE
aircraft BfE 2,350,978 991,640
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

39. COMMITMENTS 39. 7wH
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARXZHER
The Group and the Company had the following REBEARARIBUATHER
capital commitments: 2GS
Group Company
58 N
2006 2005 2006 2005
Z2BRF —TTHHF ZBERE _—ITTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT AR%®TR ARETRT
Authorised and BRER
contracted for: HESLE
- Aircraft, engines and — — TR - FEhik
flight equipment N RITHRAME 61,763,771 47,259,446 60,222,477 44,408,107
- Other property, plant —EH ¥ -
and equipment WEREZHE 567,582 96,827 561,220 70,170
- Acquisition of — B A A
a subsidiary f) 1% & - 390,000 - 390,000
62,331,353 47,746,273 60,783,697 44,868,277
Authorised but not BEEEER
contracted for: HESE
- Aircraft, engines and ~ — R - FEH)H
flight equipment RRITEE 723,000 723,000 - -
- Other property, plant — E ¥ -
and equipment MR RE 7,772,639 13,424,055 7,268,631 13,281,864
8,495,639 14,147,055 7,268,631 13,281,864
70,826,992 61,893,328 68,052,328 58,150,141
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

39. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)
(a) Capital commitments (Cont'd)

Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft
and flight equipment, including deposits prior
to delivery, subject to future inflation increases
built into the contracts and any discounts
available upon delivery of the aircraft, if any,
were expected to be paid as follows:

39. A& ()
(a) BEARX & (&)
DA _E TR R RAT R A B IE AT B
AIREMAEESEY L - B2
#AF B R A KPR FTET MR AR
B S MR AHLES TS B0 HTH]
MED - HEASBIIRMT -

Group Company
58 N

2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE —_TTHF ZBERE —TITIHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR%®TR ARETRT
Within one year —FR 14,894,068 9,006,906 13,352,744 7,301,334
In the second year B IF 18,844,893 12,703,578 18,844,893 11,557,811
In the third year F=F 15,591,463 13,523,589 15,591,463 13,523,589
In the fourth year 4 12,433,347 6,256,592 12,433,347 6,256,592
In the fifth year ERHEF - 5,768,781 - 5,768,781
61,763,771 47,259,446 60,222,447 44,408,107
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

39.

COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group and the Company had commitments

39. &% ()
(b) R MIHEEA

REE KRR R T H &

under operating leases to pay future minimum EMESHT :
lease rentals as follows:
Group Company
58 NE]
2006 2005 2006 2005
“BEXRE —TThHF ZBERE —TTILF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARE®TR
Aircraft, engines and  RM - BEHE
flight equipment RiTRfE
Within one year —F K 2,984,137 1,633,301 2,609,673 1,444,458
In the second year BF 2,961,023 1,550,209 2,596,944 1,361,362
In the third to E=FR
fifth year inclusive FREF
(BIEBEEMF) 6,524,538 4,075,691 6,050,572 3,632,279
After the fifth year AF AR 12,737,377 2,015,670 12,661,592 2,015,670
25,207,075 9,274,871 23,918,781 8,453,769
Land and buildings T RETF
Within one year —FR 153,487 68,739 133,775 67,799
In the second year E_F 42,362 60,330 40,366 59,190
In the third to E=ZFZR
fifth year inclusive ERF
(BREEEMF) 71,587 44,951 69,590 44,463
After the fifth year FFENE 54,535 2,846 54,535 2,846
321,971 176,866 298,266 174,298
25,529,046 9,451,737 24,217,047 8,628,067
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 40. ER YR

(a) Acquisition of CEA Wuhan (a)

CEA Wuhan was an associate of the Company in
which the Company had 40% equity interests.

On 8 December 2005, the Company entered into
agreements with each of Wuhan Municipality
State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (“Wuhan SASAC")
and Shanghai Junyao Aviation Investment
Company Limited (“Shanghai Junyao”) to
acquire (i) equity interests of 38% in CEA Wuhan
from Wuhan SASAC for a consideration of
RMB278 million, and (ii) equity interests of
18% in CEA Wuhan from Shanghai Junyao for a
consideration of RMB140 million, totaling
RMB418 million, respectively. The acquisition
was completed in January 2006. Proforma
financial information to reflect the acquisition
as if it had occurred on 1 January 2006 is not
presented as the impact would not have been
material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of net assets acquired and related
goodwill are as follows:

W R EE
HMRZERAN A KB E R
A ANRB)FE E40%AHE -

F;§$£¢+—HAE PN
NEHERNEZHEEEEEERE
ZEe ([REHEZR]) UK
EEHBERTIREBRAR
(B8] &FmE « PAG)
AR278BETIEBHREZ
Bl & & W R R M EL 2 38% A%
(i ARB1406 8 TIEE
% BN E R M £ 18%
RIREHE - BET ARKB418EHE
JT © JHZ/AJWE%E 6_22/\¢
—HEW RER I U B —

TRFE-—A—BERZEE
W%éﬂl*ﬁ% R H 4R
BB HMRITEERNTE -

WERFEERIEERENA
BIEAYIRIAT -

2006
—EERE
RMB’000
AR TR
Purchase consideration: WHE B -

- Cash —-RBe 418,000

- Direct costs relating to —BHIWEAERN
the acquisition BEEER -
Total purchase consideration WHEBE B 5 418,000

Fair value of net assets acquired  FTUX ﬁ%ﬁ?#‘ﬁﬁ'\]
- shown as below ARE-WTRIK (160,229)
Goodwill (Note 14) EE (sEE14) 257,771

The goodwill is attributable to an increase in
the Company’s competitiveness as a result of
its increased size and the extension of its
business scope geographically to the central
regions of the PRC.

EABBEEEABBIINE
AATNEEREIGE— 58
RE P E I - HF“T
B IEA MRS
AMBEF S -

FERARERAERAT —STAFER
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40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Acquisition of CEA Wuhan (Cont’d)

The assets and liabilities arising from the

acquisition are as follows:

40. = WE (&)
(a) WIBRMEE (&)
PR EERBEIIRIT -

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
ARE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment #73 - #2E LR & 677,465 588,599
Lease prepayments TEfT & K 75,302 75,302
Other long-term and Ht KRR RS EE
current assets 189,456 189,456
Trade receivables JE T AR 5K 256,808 104,808
Cash and cash equivalents HRekRSEEY 19,266 19,266
Other long-term and HtwRBERBEE
current liabilities (868,797) (868,797)
Provision for aircraft R RIS B B ERH
overhaul expenses (23,994) (23,994)
Deferred tax liabilities BB IBEE (29,326) -
Minority interests in CEA RMEEM B A FH
Wunan’s subsidiaries LEEREERGER (10,056) (10,056)
Net assets BEFE 286,124 74,584
Share acquired e 8 A v 56%
Net assets acquired W EEFE 160,229
Purchase consideration 1y B (2 4% 418,000
Goodwill kS 257,771
Cash outflow on business HBEBzRESRE :
acquisition:
Purchase consideration eI EEERE
settled in cash 418,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : FTNEEEEF IR &
acquired RBEEEY (19,266)
Purchase consideration paid EFFEEINKBEER
in prior year (28,000)
Cash outflow on business HINEEBAZE 2R
acquisition 370,734
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40. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Cont'd) 40. EHUWEE (&)

(b) Acquisition of China Eastern Airlines
Development (HK) Co., Ltd. (“CEA
Development (HK)")

In March 2006, the Company acquired additional
40% equity interests in CEA Development (HK),
a former associate of the Company in which
the Company had 40% interests, for HK$4
million. After the acquisition of the additional
interests, the Company’s shares in CEA
Development (HK) has increased from 40% to
80%, CEA Development (HK) become a
subsidiary of the Company.

The assets and liabilities arising from the
acquisition are as follows:

(b) WEERMEBR (B8 BRA

A ((RMERE (FE) )

ARRRZZEERF=ZAMNUA
RENEETHERMZERE
(BH) 40%HIAHE - RER
(BE)EARFUREE Z A2
NN B 40% A% A H) — KBt
BNEEA o iR TR
2% - BEERE (B8 MiRE
F40%IEINE80% © RMERE
AR ARIRH B AR -

PR EERBEIIRIT -

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
D fRE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR%T
Property, plant and equipment #73 - #2E KR & 45,292 45,292
Cash and cash equivalents RekBL2ZFEYD 8,341 8,341
Other long-term and HtRHAKRSBEE
current liabilities (38,363) (38,363)
Net assets BEFE 15,270 15,270
Share acquired 1 B i e 40%
Net assets acquired WEEEHE 6,108
Purchase consideration W RE (B % (4,136)
Negative goodwill I8 1,972
Cash inflow on business HWBEEEAZREESRE !
acquisition:
Purchase consideration Re XTI EER
settled in cash 4,136
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : FTNEEEEF R &
acquired RBSEEY (8,341)
Cash inflow on business HINEEBE RSN
acquisition (4,205)
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEBEALRS

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding, which owns AEBREMEEES - HEZT

approximately 61.64% of the Company’s shares as at TRF+ZA=+—H1 ' FEE

31 December 2006. The aviation industry in the PRC A BB AR R61.64% .7 ARHE ©

is administrated by the CAAC. CEA Holding and the EF'.EFH%IL =B R B A E

Group is ultimately controlled by the PRC government, EMEREN - PRERMER KA

which also controls a significant portion of the SEERPEBFES - FE - R

productive assets and entities in the PRC (collectively Bt iE G S ENPEEE

referred as the “SOEs”). (R EENRE]) -

(a) Related party transactions (@) EREALRS
The Group sells air tickets through sales agents $E ERGREE-R=—Ead:Nanh=g
and is therefore likely to have extensive F -AMEBELENEES - @
transactions with other state-controlled FREEAB REMPIBERTL)
enterprises, and the employees and their close BIKEERK B I (b 3 75 mTE
family members of SOEs while such employees HANRBERZHRS o It
are on corporate business. These transactions R 5 ARG R R IRFUE
are carried out on normal commercial terms 17 Bl iGREmE R PEA
that are consistently applied to all of the B — 3R - %FJ&E%*EEZ%
Group’s customers. Due to the large volume and WEZUHRLERY  EEER
the pervasiveness of these transactions, /fﬁﬁuujl?ﬁ&ﬂlitigﬁé%mﬁ@/\
management is unable to determine the o HE WEEETERS
aggregate amount of the transactions for WREHRE AEEEEER
disclosure. Therefore, retail transactions with EHEXZERNAERER
these related parties are not disclosed herein. ERFTDHE -

The Directors of the Company believe that
meaningful related party disclosures on these
retail transactions have been adequately made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’'d)

(a)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

The other related party transactions are:

EREALRS ()
(a) FREALRS (&)
HitBREALRS -

41.

Income/
(expenses or payments)
KA/ (BRARZGLE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
REMHE EBEAL —EBEARE —ZTThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARET T
With CEA Holding or companies directly
or indirectly held by CEA Holding:
ERHMEESIHRMEREE
HEEERNAT
Interest income on deposits at an EAGF** 8,036 5,341
average rate of 0.72% per annum SR Ao B g+
(2005: 0.72% per annum)
FEHRMEWA - FFHH X072
(ZZZL%F  FE¥HME072E)
Interest expense on loans at rate of 5.01% EAGF** (23,393) (14,855)
per annum (2005: 4.50% per annum) SR A B g e
ERABEXH - FH*E5.012
(ZZZ2RF : FMEKRL50E)
Commission expense on air tickets sold on SDATC** (6,085) (7,402)
behalf of the Group, at rates ranging from 5 3% Jf% %
3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold Shanghai Tourism (1,491) (21,815)

ENEMMEARNRERAERRERSE -
BeHIREUEE 15#]3%:9%
ZFEJE'].EH:—.—;‘ 5

(HK) Co., Ltd
LBRE (BB BRAA

Handling charges of 0.1% to 2% for purchase EAIEC** (40,971) (40,590)
of aircraft, flight equipment, flight RAMZEELODAR
equipment spare parts, other property, NI
plant and equipment
BERE RORE ROKVBZH
REMYE - HEE MR E M
§0.1%Z 2% F B &
Repairs and maintenance expense for Wheels & Brakes (60,066) (63,972)
aircraft and engines EEREMERENSE
ENRELEDHENEECRREER REBIRERRAA
STA (126,114) (104,853)
BERFMH
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 4. BREALTRS (B)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont'd) (a) BREALRS ()
Income/
(expenses or payments)
KA/ (BRARXAEHE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
RHEUE EREAL —EEAF —_ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Supply of food and beverages Shanghai Eastern Air (213,360) (184,306)
ERkMEHERNER Catering Co., Ltd
FERAFMER M
BRAA
Qingdao Eastern Air (16,082) (15,055)
Catering Investment
Co., Ltd.
EERITMERM
BRAA
Xian Eastern Air (22,821) (15,079)
Catering Investment
Co.,Ltd.
AZRTMERm
BRAF
Yunnan Eastern Air (31,977) (17,451)
Catering Investment
Co.,Ltd.
EERAMERM
BRAF
Advertising expense CAASC (11,583) (8,612)
BEER FERAMEER
BRAA
Purchase of aviation equipment Shanghai Eastern (11,303) (8,987)
REREERE Aviation Equipment
Manufacturing
Corporation
FRRAMERE

BiEAF

218 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Annual Report 2006




Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)
(R BIPR BT T e 25 2E Rl 2

For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
(a) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

*

* k

The Group acquired the aviation business of
CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan and an
additional equity interest of 56% in CEA
Wuhan with effect from June 2005 and
January 2006 respectively. Transactions with
CEA Northwest and CEA Yunnan up to 30 June
2005 and with CEA Wuhan up to 31 December
2005 are regarded as related party
transactions.

EAGF is also a 25% owned associate of the
Group; SDATC and EAIEC are both a 45%
owned associates of the Group.

M. BREAERS (8)
(a) BEREALRS (@)

* REBEBEAREMAIL QM
BMEMARIAMEER -
VA B2 BB AL 2 5 6 % BB IR
o DRIRNZBEREN
AR-ZZEZERF—A4ER -
R_ZZTRFA=F+AHZ
ATER SR AP db A A FIER i E
FATINRS » ARR-E
ERE+-A=+—HZH
HEMBENRZS - S
BERBALRS -

> R AEEER25%
(R Pl YNSRI E S )
MRFEHABR ARG R
ZER B 45 % AR RE 2 Bk &
AR
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

M. BREAERS (8)
(a) BERAEALRS ()

Income/
(expenses or payments)
KA/ (BERXM£H)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
XML EHEAL —BERE —ZETRHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
With CAAC and its affiliates:
HPERAMZER
[RMARIREMEHE
Civil aviation infrastructure levies paid to CAAC 696,428 466,191
REMBREDEMERERES FEEMER
Aircraft insurance premiums paid through CAAC 168,972 201,653
CAAC which entered into the insurance HERME R
policy on behalf of the Group
BREMAERINRERR
With other SOE:
HHMEBLE:
Take-off and landing fee charges State-controlled airports 3,876,737 2,461,858
RIEERF B B A # %
Purchase of aircraft fuel State-controlled fuel 10,242,349 4,571,155
BEMM suppliers
B A fin o £ FE 7
Ticket reservation service charges for Travel Sky Technology (209,572) (124,677)
utilisation of computer reservation system Limited
ENEBRITZZGREE HERMEAEE AR
Interest income on deposits at an average State-controlled banks 18,701 30,948
rates of 0.72% per annum Bl B R1T
(2005: 0.72% per annum)
FERFBWA - FFHH X722
(ZZZTREFE : FEHNX0.72E)
Interest expense on loans at an average State-controlled banks 1,227,278 790,478

rate of 5.53% per annum

(2005: 4.54% per annum)
EXMBER  FFHFEs53E

(ZZZLF  FYHMNELLLE)

BB RT
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BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’'d)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

M. BREAERS (8)
(a) BERAEALRS ()

Income/
(expenses or payments)
WA/ (RERXNSE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2006 2005
XML EREAL —EEAF —_ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Commission expense on air tickets sold on other PRC airlines 89,977 153,528
behalf of the Group at rates ranging from B /) H i i %= 2 &)
3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold
BNEMMZERFAREAEERE
e e HRBEEEEEN3%
E9% 2 AMEE L X5 E
Supply of food and beverages other state-control 469,255 368,120
ZREMEHEERNER enterprises
HtBEAEE
Balances with related companies (b) EREARIRE
(i)  Amounts due from related companies (i) EWERELRAE
Group Company
55 N
2006 2005 2006 2005

Company tEEB

“BEAE -TTRF -FBAE _TEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTR ARETT ARMFRE ARMTRT

CEA Holding HERMEE 298,287 57,773 298,287 57,773
SDATC REM 30,908 43,223 30,908 43,223
Shanghai Tourism /8 ik #2 (& %8)
(HK) Co., Ltd BRRA 5,091 23,177 5,091 23,177
CEA Development i % E
(HK) (BB)BR
NG - 66,457 - 66,457
CEA Wuhan R EE e - 3,541 - 3,541
EAIEC RAEMZE#ED
BRAR] 5,090 4,956 5,090 2,357
Other related HuBaHE
companies AT 13,343 6,585 11,833 6,585
Total &t 352,719 205,712 351,209 203,113
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 4. BREALTRS (B)
(b) Balances with related companies (Cont’d) (b) BRIE L RIEREE (&)
(i)  Amounts due from related companies () EWEBELGHNE
(Cont’d) (#&)
Except for the amount due from CEA FTERKERELFR
Holding, which is reimbursement in I BT ERFBRMSE
nature, all other amounts due from BEmIEN 2 RESHNK
related companies are trade in nature, B TEERGBTIRES
interest free and payable within normal EP—HEMIERERE -
credit terms given to trade customers.
(ii)  Amounts due to related companies (i) BB BHE L a5 1"
Group Company
58 NG
2006 2005 2006 2005
Company TtEER ZRRARE _TTLHF ZBERE _TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®BTR ARKETR
EAIEC RAMZEELN
AR (270,514)  (371,123)  (179,582)  (289,773)
CEA Holding HERMEE (40,338) (94,216) (40,338) (94,216)
Shanghai Eastern /8% 5% (7,261) - (7,261) -
Airlines Catering R m AR 2 A
Co. Ltd.
Yunnan Fastern EFERFMZE
Air Catering EmBRAA
Investment
Co., Ltd. (11,036) - (11,036) -
CAASC FERAMEER
BERRE (101) (2,285) (101) (2,285)
Other related Hih B BELNE
companies (19,227) (108,406) (8,044) (99,915)
Total CEil (348,477)  (576,030)  (246,362)  (486,189)

Except for amounts due to EAGF and CEA
Holding, which are reimbursement in
nature, all other amounts due to related
companies are trade in nature, interest
free and payable within normal credit
terms given by trade creditors.

FrB N BREERER
B RTINS RMA N
PERMEERIESN -
REZHME - NEE KRG
TRESEP—KNER
B e
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) M EBBREALRS (&)

(b) Balances with related companies (Cont’d) (b) BREIE LR RIEREE (&)
(iii) Short-term deposits and short-term (i) ¥ B & 1 2] g R & 54

loans with an associate UREHE

Average interest rate Group Company
SRk 58 24

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Company 27 ZR8RF CTTRF CBRRE CITRE CZBERE EIRE

RNB'OOO  RNBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOND
ARRBTR ARRTL ARBTR ARETL

Short-term deposits (included EHEF (B
in Prepayments, Deposits R #7
and Other Receivables) REfBERZA)

"EAGF"* RhEH 0.7% 0.% 755,665 475,078 59,637 31,38
Short-term loans (included ~ EHER
in Borrowings) (BREEERA)
"EAG"* Fhbti 5.1% G5% T8B991 213700 182,000 180,702
* EAGF is a 25% owned associate of * BB AEEHE
the Group; 25% A% HE 2 B i N )
(iv) State-controlled banks and other (iv) I ERITUAREME
financial institutions il 15
Average interest rate Group Company
A% £E 28
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Company A ZRRRF ZTTRE CZEBERE CEITNE CBRERE _TIRE

RMBO00  RNB000  RMB'OO0  RMBYO0O
ARBTR ARETT ARRTR ARETR

Bank deposits (included REH

in cash and cash (BERER

equivalents) ReSEM  0T% 07% 759,110 1,196,963 571,863 755,225

Long-term bank borrowings & &R {TEH 5.5% 3.0% 12,825,763 10,438,483 11,230,805 10,066,664

(¢) Guarantees by holding company (c) ERAREHNER

As at 31 December 2006, bank loans of the RZEERFT+ZA=1T—
Group and the Company with an aggregate S $%.&$ AIERTTEK
amount of RMB695 million and 100 million FARKSEETLEARK
respectively (2005: RMB1,282 million and 200 10088 (ZEZTRF : AR
million) were guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note #1,282B BT R AR200H
28). S70) BPBIRME B L E

= (FXHE28) °

PERAMERGBARAT —ZTRFFRH

223




Notes to the Financial Statements

M HRRERE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IR BB B & B AR 2
For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—TEANGF+ A=+ HILFE

41.

42.

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’'d)

(d) Key management compensation

41.

ERAEALRS (B
(d) SHRITHAEME

2006 2005
—E2ERE —ZTTNOHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T
Salaries, bonus, 2 AP AN
allowances and benefits 7 B K 1@ A 1,365 1,825

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard CEA Holding, a state-owned
enterprise established in the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2005, the Company received a legal claim in the
United States of America for unspecified damages by
family members of certain victims in the air crash of
an aircraft of CEA Yunnan which occurred on 21
November 2004 in Baotou, Neimonggol, the PRC.

Management has engaged legal representatives to
vigorously contest the proceedings. The proceedings
are still in an early stage and in the opinion of the
Directors, based on professional advice, it is unlikely
that there will be any significant adverse effect to
the financial position of the Group.

42.

43.

RARERDF
AR R B DA LR AR B 0 R
SRR B ARA R E RS

Sl NI

HAREE

R-ZFZTRE  ARAEXERE
hEL o RERR _ZZTWF+—HA
- BRMEBAR KRBT
FEANRGBEAEHPHILHER
J& ZSORTEE 2 FRRE(E

EBECIEEARR R LR
SR RIEHE o ZHFADER IS
B EEMREEATEBEER
B RRDEAEE Y A
RS T G R EATFILE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
(a) Share Reform

On 18 December 2006, the Company convened
the Relevant Shareholder’'s Meeting of A Share
Shareholders in which the Company’s share
reform plan (the “Share Reform Plan”) was
approved. According to the Share Reform Plan,
each holder of circulating A shares of the
Company whose name appeared on the
shareholders’ register on the register date of
the Share Reform Plan (i.e. 10 January 2007)
would be offered 3.2 shares as a consideration
by CEA Holding, the only holder of the unlisted
and non-circulating shares of the Company, for
every 10 circulating A shares held by it. The
original non-circulating shares held by CEA
Holding would be granted the status of listing
after implementation of the Share Reform Plan.
The Share Reform Plan was approved by the
Ministry of Commerce on 4 January 2007 and
implemented on 9 January 2007. In this
connection, CEA Holding granted 96 million
shares in total to the holders of the circulating
shares and the original non-circulating shares
held by CEA Holding were granted the status of
listing subject to certain circulating conditions
on 12 January 2007.

44 #£EHEEE
(a) RIESBRES=

ARABRZZEERF+=-A+
NBEBHRTREDERZAR
MSHABRREZE® - Fa88
TC(RBERFAMERDBRA
RAIREDEREHR) ([
FER]) - RIBRHAER -
EEEARARE—RIERE
AXARER - AN GRS EE
EREST AN BT E—
A+ BEREMOARQERE
AR F10 3. 208 0%
Z. DMEEEMEEMFERN
RARIIERBIRDES LR
BENHERHE - REFER
T F—AINHESRE
AR FEFBrE H S PEHE W7 =
ST F—-ANBEM Bt
AR B A 2R - AR E KAt
£196,000,000/% %15 - A==
T+FE—A+-H EMmEE
BA A RERBRBIE
SEREGEHR _ETTEE -

FERARERAERAT —STAFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Cont'd)
(a) Share Reform (Cont’d)

After the implementation of Share Reform Plan,

4. GEHEEE (&)

(a) BESERESLR (&)
BT RE MR - ARFIRR

the share structure of the Company will be as DEBEENT
follows:
Prior to Share Reform After Share Reform
BiTHEZHEA BiITHEZHR
% of total % of total
No. of no. of No. of no. of
shares held shares shares held shares
ERE(R) HEARG BRER) HERSG
# L Bl & bt 4
Unlisted and im) A7 8
non-circulating shares
Shares held by ERTE =Nl
the PRC Government 3,000,000,000 61.64 - -
Circulating shares BRE G
with restricted 7 B AR
transfer held by ERSEER
the PRC Government - - 2,904,000,000 59.67
Circulating shares EREKRED
without restricted R
transfer
RMB Common BALETH
shares listed ARBEBR
within the PRC 300,000,000 6.16 396,000,000 8.13
Foreign shares BN ETIEY
listed outside INE R
the PRC 1,566,950,000 32.20 1,566,950,000 32.20
Circulating miEREE
shares total 1,866,950,000 38.36  1,962,950,000 40.33
Total number B fn B 58
of shares 4,866,950,000 100 4,866,950,000 100
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For the year ended 31 December 2006
BE—FENGFf-H=+—HILFE

44.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Cont’d)

(b)

Tax reform

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s
Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new
CIT Law”). This legislation reduces the corporate
income tax rate for domestic enterprises from
33% to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008.
In addition, certain preferential and reduced
tax rates may be withdrawn, subject to
grandfathering provisions.

Since deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, the
change in the applicable tax rate will affect
the determination of the carrying values of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
of the Group. As at the date that these financial
statements are approved for issue, detailed
measures of the new CIT Law have yet to be
issued, specific provisions concerning the
applicable income tax rates, computation of
taxable income, as well as specific preferential
tax treatments and their related transitional
provisions for the periods from 2008 and
onwards have not been clarified. Consequently,
the Group is not in a position to reasonably
assess the impact, if any, to the carrying values
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
as the result of the implementation of the new
CIT Law. The Group will further evaluate the
impact to its operating results and financial
positions of future periods as more detailed
measures and other related regulations are
announced.

44 #FHBHERSBE (&)
(b) BiEKE

“TELF=F+RE " 2H
ARKEXRSBEBT(REA
RAMBEEMBER) (5
RERAFBUA]) - FIFETUA
BR-TTNFRER » KNE
ERFERANERERNE
EFRGRESHIZINEE
25% ° LS - NGB B IR A
F H#B 0 B B A K Al BE & X
H e

RNELERIREEFRELER IR
BERBBEHZEEERK
BEENSEHOHETE
A EN N E e EREE
BERIBEEEMELERIBEE
RIERTEE(E - EAMIEHREKE
HEEEm 2 A - BRI EFT
BRUENERMAA MR A
Bl a0 B8 Fr S R 15 2 B R E 1
Ko R ARETE S -
& pIME B HR R L PEFFE2008F
N A& 038 HRGSR o Bt
RNEE B AT TREFFT D EPT
SEEAERBEREERRLE
MIBEEMELER IR EME
EROF BT EEL SR
& o NEEBEBMIFTEEN
BEAN B BIRFKAR &
HEAREE L LR AR

T E -

FERSRERGERAT ST FEH
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